B City of
a¥4» Richmond Agenda

City Council

Council Chambers, City Hall
6911 No. 3 Road

Monday, May 11, 2020
7:00 p.m.

Pg. # ITEM

MINUTES

CNCL-6 1. Motion to adopt the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on April
27, 2020.

AGENDAADDITIONS & DELETIONS

PRESENTATION

C.J. James, Partner KPMG, to present on the City of Richmond - Audit
Findings Report for the year ended December 31, 2019.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

2. Motion to resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on
agenda items.

CNCL -1
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Council Agenda - Monday, May 11, 2020

Pg. # ITEM

3. Delegations from the floor on Agenda items.

PLEASE NOTE THAT FOR LEGAL REASONS, DELEGATIONS ARE
NOT PERMITTED ON ZONING OR OCP AMENDMENT BYLAWS
WHICH ARE TO BE ADOPTED.

4. Motion to rise and report.

RATIFICATION OF COMMITTEE ACTION

CONSENT AGENDA

PLEASE NOTE THAT ITEMS APPEARING ON THE CONSENT
AGENDA WHICH PRESENT A CONFLICT OF INTEREST FOR
COUNCIL MEMBERS MUST BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT
AGENDA AND CONSIDERED SEPARATELY.

CONSENT AGENDA HIGHLIGHTS

»  Receipt of Committee minutes

= Capital Regional District Biofuel Incineration at the Richmond Lafarge
Cement Manufacturing Site

= Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Amendment Bylaw No. 10127
Part Ten: Karaoke Box Room Regulation

=  Application by David Lin for a Heritage Alteration Permit at 6471 Dyke
Road (Mckinney House)

=  Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153

5. Motion to adopt Items No. 6 through No. 10 by general consent.

Consent 6. COMMITTEE MINUTES

Agenda
Item

That the minutes of:

CNCL-11 (1) the General Purposes Committee meeting held on May 4, 2020; and
CNCL-19 (2) the Einance Committee meeting held on May 4, 2020;

be received for information.

CNCL -2
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Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Consent
Agenda
Item

Pg. # ITEM

CNCL-23

CNCL-28

CNCL-32

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT BIOFUEL INCINERATION AT

THE RICHMOND LAFARGE CEMENT MANUFACTURING SITE
(File Ref. No. 10-6175-03-01) (REDMS No. 6440871 v. 6)

See Page CNCL -23 for full report

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

That the comments outlined in the staff report titled “Capital Regional
District Biofuel Incineration at the Richmond Lafarge Cement
Manufacturing Site” dated March 30, 2020, from the Director,
Sustainability and District Energy be endorsed and directed to Metro
Vancouver and the Capital Regional District.

BUSINESS REGULATION BYLAW NO. 7538, AMENDMENT
BYLAW NO. 10127 PART TEN: KARAOKE BOX ROOM

REGULATION
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-02-01; 12-8060-20-010127) (REDMS No. 6392006)

See Page CNCL -28 for full report

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

That Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Amendment Bylaw No. 10127,
which amends Part Ten: Karaoke Box Room Regulation to prevent mosaic
patterns of glass coverage, be introduced and given first, second and third
readings.

APPLICATION BY DAVID LIN FOR A HERITAGE ALTERATION

PERMIT AT 6471 DYKE ROAD (MCKINNEY HOUSE)
(File Ref. No. HA 20-893182) (REDMS No. 6431249 v. 5)

See Page CNCL -32 for full report

GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
That a Heritage Alteration Permit be issued which would:

(1) Permit the following maintenance work to the heritage-designated
house at 6471 Dyke Road, on a site zoned “Single Detached Housing
(ZS1) - London Landing (Steveston)”:

CNCL -3
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Pg. # ITEM
(@) Removal and replacement of exterior wood shingle and
horizontal lap siding cladding on a like-for-like basis;
(b) Repair and replacement of the rotted shiplap sheathing with
new plywood sheathing as needed;
(c) Installation of new building wrap material to seal the dwelling
from water ingress;
(d) Installation of metal flashing to all openings and joints; and
(e) Incidental repair of existing soffits, as needed, on a like-for-like
basis.
Consent 10. REVENUE ANTICIPATION BORROWING (2020) BYLAW NO. 10153
Aﬂee'jﬁa (File Ref. No. 03-0900-01) (REDMS No. 6404314 v. 2)
CNCL-75 See Page CNCL -75 for full report

FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION

(1) That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be
introduced and given first, second and third readings; and

(2) That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be
adopted.

*hkhkkhkkhkkkhkkhkkkkhhkkkihkhkihkikiikikk

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REMOVED FROM THE
CONSENT AGENDA

kkhkhkhhhkhkhkkkhkhkhkiiiiihkhkhkik
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CNCL-81

CNCL-171

ITEM

11.

NON-CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

FINANCE COMMITTEE
Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair

2019 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(File Ref. No. 03-0905-01) (REDMS No. 6448921 v. 2; 6448931; 6422057)

See Page CNCL -81 for full report

FINANCE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
Opposed: Clirs. Day, Greene and Wolfe

That the City of Richmond’s audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2019 be accepted.

PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND EVENTS

NEW BUSINESS

BYLAW FOR ADOPTION

Revised Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2020-2024) Bylaw No. 10183
Opposed at 1%/2"%/3" Readings — CllIr. Greene

ADJOURNMENT

CNCL -5



City of
Richmond Minutes

Place:

Present:

Call to Order:

RES NO.

R20/8-1-1

ITEM

1.

Regular Council

Monday, April 27, 2020

Council Chambers
Richmond City Hall

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie

Councillor Chak Au

Councillor Carol Day (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Kelly Greene (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Alexa Loo (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Bill McNulty (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Linda McPhail (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Harold Steves (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Michael Wolfe (attending via teleconference)

Acting Corporate Officer — Matt O’Halloran

Mayor Brodie called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded
That:

(1)  the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on April 14, 2020,
be adopted as circulated;

(2)  the minutes of the Special Council meeting held on Aril 20, 2020, be
adopted as circulated; and

(3)  the minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Public Hearings held
on April 20, 2020, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

CNCL -6



City of
—ichmond Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, April 27, 2020

Mayor Brodie noted that since no members of the public were present at the
meeting, a motion to resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations
from the ..vor on Agenda items and to rise and report (Items No. 2 to 4)
would not be necessary.

CONSENT AGENDA

R20/8-2 5. It was moved and seconded
That Items No. 6 and No. 7 be adopted by general consent.

CARRIED

6. COMMITTEE MINUTES

That the minutes of:
(1) the General Purposes Committee meeting held on April 20, 2020; and
(2)  the Special Finance Committee meeting held on April 20, 2020
be received for information.
ADOPTED ON CONSENT

7.  REPORT 2019: CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT FOR

SUSTAINABLE WASTE MANAGEMENT
(File Ref. No. 10-6370-01) (REDMS No. 6433406 v. 3)

That the annual report titled, “Report 2019: Continuous Improvement for
Sustainable Waste Management’ be endorsed and be made available to the
community on the City’s website and through various communication tools
including social media channels and as part of community outreach
initiatives.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

6457751 CNCL - 7



City of
_ichmond Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, April 27, 2020

BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION

R20/8-3 It was moved and seconded
That the following bylaws be adopted:

Housing Agreement (9680 Williams Road) Bylaw No. 10118
Consolidated Fees Bylaw No. 8636, Amendment Bylaw No. 10143
Business Licence Bylaw No. 7360, Amendment Bylaw No. 10145
Consolidated Fees Bylaw No. 8636, Amendment Bylaw No. 10160
Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 9939

CARRIED
R20/8-4 It was moved and seconded
That Vehicle for Hire Bylaw No. 6900, Amendment Bylaw No. 10128 be
adopted.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion took place on
ensuring that minors are required to wear a helmet while on the quadricycle.

Inresponsetoq ~ fr  CTouncil, staff noted that (i) the Motor Vehicle Act
states that individuals are not required to wear helmets on quadricycles, (ii)
the City of Richmond Bylaws state that individuals must wear helmets on
quadricycles until they are 17 years old, and (iii) other municipalities have
adopted similar bylaws to the City of Richmond with regard to helmet use.

As a result of the discussion the following referral motion was introduced:

R20/8-5 It was moved and seconded
That Vehicle for Hire Bylaw No. 6900, Amendment Bylaw No. 10128 be
referred back to staff to include a requirement for individuals under the age
of 19 to wear a helmet while on the quadricycle.

The question on the referral motion was not called as discussion took place on
ensuring minors’ heads are protected while on the quadricycle to prevent head
injuries.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was CARRIED
with Mayor Brodie, Cllrs. Au and Loo opposed.

6457751 CNCL - 8



City of
..ichmond Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, April 27, 2020

R20/8-6 It was moved and seconded
That Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment ..,law No. 9644 be
adopted.

The question on the motion was not called, as discussion took place regarding
the rear access lane associated with the proposed rezoning, and concern over
the loss of fruit trees, landscaping design, wall placement, and the coach
house designation.

In reply to queries from Council, staff noted that separate portions of the
existing lane for this block of Blundell Avenue are intended to be connected
over time, and that landscaping layout is limited by the required access to the
proposed coach houses.

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED with Cllrs.
Day, Greene and Wolfe opposed.

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PANEL

R20/8-7 8. It was moved and seconded
(1)  That the Chair’s report for the Development Permit Panel meeting
held on October 17, 2019 be received for information; and

(2)  That the recommendations of the Panel to authorize the issuance of a
Development Permit (DP 18-820689) for the property at 1600 Savage
Road be endorsed, and the Permits so issued.

The question on the motion was not called as concern was raised regarding
the proposed Environmentally Sensitive Area compensation and enhancement
and the retention of habitat and native species.

The question on the motion was then called and it was DEFEATED with
Cllrs. Au, Day, Greene, McPhail and Wolfe opposed.

6457751 CNCL - 9
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nichmond Minutes

Regular Council
Monday, April 27, 2020

Discussion then ensued with regard to reconsideration of the matter by the
Development Permit Panel, and as a result, the following referral motion
was introduced:

R20/8-8 It was moved and seconded
That Development Permit Application (DP 18-820689) by Integrated
Construction, located at 1600 Savage Road, be referred back to the
Development Permit Panel to:

(a) assess construction activity occurring on site;

(b) investigate alternative site plans that would allow for the
retention of the central Environmentally Sensitive Area; and

(c) review the Environmentally Sensitive Area restoration plans as
it relates to the scope of work involved with invasive species
removal and tree replacement planting species.

CARRIED
ADJOURNMENT
R20/8-9 It was moved and seconded
«..at the meeting adjourn (8:05 p.m.).
CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the Regular meeting of the
Council of the City of Richmond held on
Monday, April 27, 2020.

Mayor (Malcolm D. Brodie) Acting Corporate Officer
(Matt O’Halloran)

6457751
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Date:

Place:

Present:

Cali to Order:

6462150

General Purposes Committee

Monday, May 4, 2020

Anderson Room
Richmond City Hall

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair

Councillor Chak Au

Councillor Carol Day (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Kelly Greene (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Alexa Loo

Councillor Bill McNulty (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Linda McPhail (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Harold Steves (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Michael Wolfe (attending via teleconference)

The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded

That the minutes of the meeting of the General Purposes Committee held on
April 20, 2020, be amended to include the phrase “enhanced
communication regarding the disposal of drywall and wood” in Item No. 1
as Part (vii).

CARRIED

It was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the meeting of the General Purposes Committee held on
April 20, 2020, be adopted as amended.

CARRIED

CNCL - 11



General Purposes Committee
Monday, May 4, 2020

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION

CAPITAL REGIONAL DISTRICT BIOFUEL INCINERATION AT

THE RICHMOND LAFARGE CEMENT MANUFACTURING SITE
(File Ref. No. 10-6175-03-01) (REDMS No. 6440871 v. 6)

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) monitoring and minimizing contaminants
in the biofuel, (ii) management of the project, (iii) minimizing potential
odours and emissions, and (iv) alternatives to the incineration of biosolids.

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that (i) contaminants and
emissions will be monitored to ensure that concentrations meet acceptable
standards, (ii) installation of carbon filters are proposed in the emission pipes,
(iii) the project will be managed by Metro Vancouver and the City will remain
engaged and provide input throughout the  process, and
(iv) the City will be engaging with other municipalities to ensure sites outside
of Richmond meet emission standards.

It was moved and seconded

That the comments outlined in the staff report titled “Capital Regional
District Biofuel Incineration at the Richmond Lafarge Cement
Manufacturing Site” dated March 30, 2020, from the Director,
Sustainability and District Energy be endorsed and directed to Metro
Vancouver and the Capital Regional District.

CARRIED

COMMUNITY SAFETY DIVISION

BUSINESS REGULATION BYLAW NO. 7538, AMENDMENT
BYLAW NO. 10127 PART TEN: KARAOKE BOX ROOM
REGULATION

(File Ref. No. 12-8060-02-01) (REDMS No. 6392006)

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that the applicant met current
regulations regarding the coverage of glass on the walls for visibility of the
rooms, however the proposed bylaw would further provide clarity on glass
transparency requirements for future applicants.

It was moved and seconded

That Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Amendment Bylaw No. 10127,
which amends Part Ten: Karaoke Box Room Regulation to prevent mosaic
patterns of glass coverage, be introduced and given first, second and third
readings.

CARRIED

CNCL -12



General Purposes Committee
Monday, May 4, 2020

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

APPLICATION BY DAVID LIN FOR A HERITAGE ALTERATION

PERMIT AT 6471 DYKE ROAD (MCKINNEY HOUSE)
(File Ref. No. HA 20-893182) (REDMS No. 6431249 v. 5)

A revised Heritage Alteration Permit was distributed (attached to and forming
part of these minutes as Schedule 1).

It was moved and seconded
That a Heritage Alteration Permit be issued which would:

(1)  Permit the following maintenance work to the heritage-designated
house at 6471 Dyke Road, on a site zoned “Single Detached Housing
(ZS1) - London Landing (Steveston)”:

(a) Removal and replacement of exterior wood shingle and
horizontal lap siding cladding on a like-for-like basis;

(b) Repair and replacement of the rotted shiplap sheathing with
new plywood sheathing as needed;

(¢c) Installation of new building wrap material to seal the dwelling
from water ingress;

(d) Installation of metal flashing to all openings and joints; and

(e) Incidental repair of existing soffits, as needed, on a like-for-like
basis.

CARRIED

APPLICATION BY YUANHENG SEASIDE DEVELOPMENTS LTD. /
YUANHENG SEAVIEW DEVELOPMENTS LTD. FOR A ZONING
TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE “RESIDENTIAL/LIMITED
COMMERCIAL AND COMMUNITY AMENITY (ZMU30) -
CAPSTAN VILLAGE (CITY CENTRE)” ZONE AT 3399 CORVETTE

WAY AND 3311 AND 3331 NO. 3 ROAD
(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-010162; ZT 19-872212) (REDMS No. 6447538)

Staff reviewed the application, noting that the applicant has requested that
(i) approximately 10,000 ft* of unbuilt floor area be relocated from the Phase
1 site to the Phase 2 and 3 sites of the project, (ii) the number of dwelling
units on-site be increased to 960 from 850 based on the increase of the public
open space contribution as applicable to the Capstan Station Bonus, and
(iii) completion of proposed City Centre North Community Centre be
deferred to 2023.

CNCL -13



General Purposes Committee
Monday, May 4, 2020

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) increasing the number of proposed
dwelling units allocated for affordable housing, (ii) determining the size of the
proposed units and the unit mix of family-friendly units, and (iii)} considering
the application at a Public Hearing,

In reply to queries from Committee, staff noted that at the time of the
rezoning application, proposed designs were conceptual, however more
information on dwelling unit size can be obtained from the applicant. Also,
staff noted that the proposed development is expected to meet a minimum
level 2 BC Energy Step Code and will be required to connect to District
Energy.

A letter from the City Centre Community Association, dated May 3, 2020,
was distributed (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 2).

Discussion ensued regarding the governance model of the proposed City
Centre North Community Centre, and in reply to queries, staff noted that staff
can provide additional information on the matter. Also, staff added that
residency of Phase 2 will not take place until the completion of the proposed
Community Centre.

As a result of the discussion, the following referral motion was introduced:

It was moved and seconded

That the staff report titled “Application by Yuanheng Seaside Developments
Ltd. / Yuanheng Seaview Developments Ltd. for a Zoning Text Amendment
to the “Residential/Limited Commercial and Community Amenity (ZMU30)
— Capstan Village (City Centre)” Zone at 3399 Corvette Way and 3311 and
3331 No. 3 Road”, dated April 23, 2020, from the Director, Development, be
referred back to staff to provide more information on the following:

(1) the proposed changes to the dwelling unit sizes compared to the
original proposal;

(2)  the proposed number of rental units;

(3)  options to increase the affordable housing contribution;
(4)  rationale for waiving the Public Hearing;

(5) the proposed amount of amenity space;

(6) the rationale for the deferral of the proposed City Centre North
Community Centre and the proposed construction timeline; and

(7)  the proposed governance model of the City Centre North Community
Centre.

CNCL -14



General Purposes Committee
Monday, May 4, 2020

The question on the referral motion was not called as discussion ensued with
regard to the application’s timeline and construction timeline of the proposed
City Centre North Community Centre.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was CARRIED.

ADJOURNMENT

t was moved and scconded
That the meeting adjourn (4:55 p.m.).

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the General
Purposes Committee of the Council of the
City of Richmond held on Monday, May
4, 2020,

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie Evangel Biason

Chair

Legislative Services Associate

CNCL -15



Schedule 1 to the Minutes of the
General Purposes Committee
meeting of Richmond City
Council held on Monday, May 4,
2020.

City oT Heritage Alteration Permit
. Development Applications Division
Rlchmond 6911 No. 3 Road, Richmond, BC V6Y 2C1
File No.: HA 20-893182
To the Holder: David Lin

Property Address: 6471 Dyke Road

Legal Description: LOT 1 SECTION 18 BLOCK 3 NORTH RANGE 6 WEST NEW WESTMINSTER
DISTRICT PLAN 11588

(s.617, Local Government Act)

1. (Reason for Permit) B4 Designated Heritage Property (s.611)
O Property Subject to Temporary Protection (s.609)
O Property Subject to Heritage Revitalization Agreement (s.610)
O Property in Heritage Conservation Area (5.615)
O Property Subject to s.219 Heritage Covenant (Land Titles Act)

2. This Heritage Alteration Permit is issued for the following alterations, as illustrated on Plans #1 to
Plan #3.d:

¢ Removal and replacement of exterior wood shingle and horizontal lap siding cladding on a like-
for-like basis;

e Repair and replacement of the rotted shiplap sheathing with new plywood sheathing as needed;
¢ Installation of new building wrap material to seal the dwelling from water ingress;

¢ Installation of metal flashing to all openings and joints; and
o Incidental repair of existing soffits, as needed, on a like-for-like basis.

3. This Heritage Alteration Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the City
applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit.

4. 1If the alterations authorized by this Heritage Alteration Permit are not completed within 24 months
of the date of this Permit, this Permit lapses.

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION NO. ISSUED BY THE COUNCIL THE DAY OF
DELIVERED THIS DAY OF , 2020.
MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, PUNISHABLE BY A FINE OF UP TO $50,000 IN THE CASE OF AN
INDIVIDUAL AND $1,000,000 IN THE CASE OF A CORPORATION, FOR THE HOLDER OF THIS PERMIT TO FAIL TO COMPLY WITH
THE REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PERMIT.

CNCL -16



Schedule 2 to the Minutes of the
General Purposes Committee
meeting of Richmond City
Council held on Monday, May 4,
XX 2020.
SYXYR . .
'’  City Centre Community Association
Al Kty 20 ene
———— \/6X 0L9

CITY CENTRE

Tel: 604-204-8588
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION Fax: 604-204-8589

May 3, 2020
To: General Purposes Committee, City of Richmond

Re: May 4, 2020 meeting, Agenda item #4 from Planning & Development Division
(GP-61)

“APPLICATION BY YUANHENG SEASIDE DEVELOPMENTS LTD./ YUANHENG
SEAVIEW DEVELOPMENTS LTD. FOR A ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT TO THE
“RESIDENTIAL/LIMITED COMMERCIAL AND COMMUNITY  AMENITY
(ZMU30)-CAPSTAN VILLAGE (CITY CENTRE)” ZONE AT 3399 CORVETTE WAY
AND 3311 AND 3331 NO. 3 ROAD(File Ref. No. 12-8060-20-010162; ZT 19-872212)
(REDMS No. 6447538)"

Dear Mayor and Councillors,

I am writing on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Richmond City Centre
Community Association with respect to this City Centre North development, and
particularly staff recommendation “(2) That the terms of the voluntary developer
community amenity contribution secured through the original rezoning of 3399
Corvette Way and 3311 and 3331No. 3 Road(RZ 12-603040) be amended to
permit the completion of the proposed City Centre North Community Centre,at 3311
No. 3 Road, to be deferred from December 31, 2021 to December 31, 2023".

The Board of the City Centre Community Association strongly supports the City of
Richmond’s push to build the new City Centre North Community Centre. This Centre
will be a major benefit to the growing community in City Centre North. We feel that the
deferred completion will enable the new Centre to establish itself more quickly once it
is finished, since there will be more residents in the area. The revised design brings
significant improvements including an expanded plaza and improved design with more
daylight within the building, which will be very positive for local residents. Plus, as
taxpayers, we very much appreciate that the developer is funding the construction of
the new Centre as well as significant costs for its fit-up.

The new timeline and the presence of local residents when the new Centre opens will
enable residents in that neighborhood to form a Board to ensure that local needs are
met by the new Centre, in partnership with the City. Our Board requests that Council

local residents and establishing a sense of pride and neighbourhood, which
particularly challenging in urban settings.

PHOTOCOPIED

MAY 0 4 2020
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As our Board wrote in previous correspondence to the Mayor and Council, we are
actively interested in helping the new Centre start on a successful path in its urban
location and with the partnership opportunities that location brings. We are happy to
help the City of Richmond establish the new Centre based on learnings from our
experiences in the startup of the existing City Centre Community Centre - both with the
new facility as well as setting-up links with the local community.

Sincerely,

Jose Gonzalez,
President, Richmond City Centre Community Association

Page 2 of 2
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Richmond Minutes

Finance Committee

Date: Monday, May 4, 2020

Place: Anderson Room
Richmond City Hall

Present: Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie, Chair
Councillor Chak Au

Councillor Carol Day (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Kelly Greene (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Alexa Loo

Councillor Bill McNulty (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Linda McPhail (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Harold Steves (attending via teleconference)
Councillor Michael Wolfe (attending via teleconference)

Call to Order: The Chair called the meeting to order at 4:55 p.m.

MINUTES

It was moved and seconded
That the minutes of the meetings of the Finance Committee held on April 6,
2020 and April 20, 2020, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED

FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

1. 2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE RICHMOND PUBLIC

LIBRARY
(File Ref. No. 03-0905-01) (REDMS No. 6448396; 6448404)

Discussion ensued with regard to the Richmond Public Library’s operating
budget and projected 2020 surplus.

6462168 CNCL - 19



Finance Committee
Monday, May 4, 2020

It was moved and seconded

That the 2019 Richmond Public Library audited financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2019, as presented in the attached report from the
Chief Librarian, be received for information.

CARRIED

2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE LULU ISLAND ENERGY

COMPANY
(File Ref. No. 10-0060-20) (REDMS No. 6441023)

It was moved and seconded

That the Lulu Island Energy Company report titled “2019 Financial
Statements for the Lulu Island Energy Company” dated April 1, 2020 from
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, be received for
information.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to
the utility’s rates, statfing and financing costs.

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED.

RICHMOND OLYMPIC OVAL - 2019 AUDITED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS
(File Ref. No.) (REDMS No, 6450716)

It was moved and seconded

That the report on 2019 Audited Financial Statements for the Richmond
Olympic Oval Corporation from the Controller of the Richmond Olympic
Oval Corporation be received for information.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued regarding the
recording of staff time and the Oval’s investment balance.

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED.

2019 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(File Ref. No. 03-0905-01/2020) (REDMS No. 6448921 v. 2; 6448931; 6422057)

Mayor Brodie noted that the auditors from KPMG were invited to attend the
meeting to delegate on the matter. Mayor Brodie added that there are no
provisions in Council Procedure Bylaw No. 7560 to allow delegations to
present remotely and electronically and as such, KPMG opted to present their
submission in writing (copy on-file, City Clerk’s Office).

Discussion ensued with regard to amending Council Procedure Bylaw
No. 7560 to allow delegations to present remotely. Staft noted that such
amendments may be considered in the future, however the bylaw cannot be
amended prior to the upcoming Council meeting.

CNCL - 20



Finance Committee
Monday, May 4, 2020

[t was moved and seconded
That the City of Richmond’s audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2019 be accepted.

CARRIED
Opposed: Cllrs. Day
Greene

Wolfe

REVENUE ANTICIPATION BORROWING (2020) BYLAW NO. 10153
(File Ref. No. 03-0900-01/2020) (REDMS No. 6404314 v. 2)

[t was moved and seconded
1.  That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be
introduced and given first, second and third readings; and

2. That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be
adopted.

The question on the motion was not called as statf advised that the proposed

bylaw would allow for additional credit facilitation with the City’s financial

partners and as such, this financial tool can be used in the event that

temporary bridge financing is required. Staff added that the temporary

financing is typically not utilized for long-term capital expenditures.

Discussion ensued with regard to the proposed additional credit facility, and it
was noted that the City has not used the credit. It was suggested that the
public be informed of the City’s position regarding utilization of the financial
tool through a letter to the editor.

The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED.

ADJOURNMENT

It was moved and seconded
That the meeting adjourn (5:20 p.m.).

CARRIED
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Finance Committee
Monday, May 4, 2020

Certified a true and correct copy of the
Minutes of the meeting of the Finance
Committee of the Council of the City of
Richmond held on Monday, May 4, 2020.

Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie Evangel Biason
Chair Legislative Services Associate
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F Jort to vommittee

To: General Purposes Committee Date:

From: Peter Russell, BASc, MSc, MCIP, RPP File:
Director, Sustainability and District Energy

March 30, 2020

10-6175-03-01/2020-
Vol 01

Re: Capital Regional District Biofuel Incineration at the Richmond Lafarge

Cement Manufacturing Site

Staff Recommendation

That the comments outlined in the staff report titled “Capital Regional District Biofuel
Incineration at the Richmond Lafarge Cement Manufacturing Site” dated March 30, 2020, from
the Director, Sustainability and District Energy be endorsed and directed to Metro Vancouver

and the Capital Regional District.

(==

Peter Russell, BASc, MSc, MCIP, RPP
Director, Sustainability and District Energy
(604-276-4130)

REPORT CONCURRENCE
ROUTED To: CONCURRENCE | CONCURRENCE OF ( _. _ AL MANAGER
DocuSigned by:
Building Approvals o} Ly
9352CBOSCEDB448...
SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW INmALS: )
Document Number: 6440871 Version: 6

6440871
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Staff Report
Origin

The purpose of this report is to provide an update on biosolid management in Metro Vancouver and
inform Council of the Capital Regional District’s plan to export refined biosolid pellets from the
Hartland Residuals Treatment Facility on Vancouver Island to Lafarge Canada Incorporated’s
(Lafarge) cement plant in Richmond. This report also recommends that comments regarding this
project be endorsed and directed to Metro Vancouver and the Capital Regional District.

This report supports Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #1 A Safe and Resilient City:
Enhance and protect the safety and well-being of Richmond.
1.4 Foster a safe, caring and resilient environment.

This report supports Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #2 A Sustainable and
Environmentally Conscious City:

Environmentally conscious decision-making that demonstrates leadership in
implementing innovative, sustainable practices and supports the City's unique
biodiversity and island ecology.

2.1 Continued leadership in addressing climate change and promoting circular economic
principles.
Analysis

Biosolids in Metro Vancouver

Biosolids are the stabilized products recovered from the wastewater treatment process and are
provincially regulated. Biosolids can be beneficially used in energy production or in land
application (as a fertilizer or soil amendment). Biosolids can be further refined to produce biosolid
pellets. As a biofuel, refined biosolid pellets can provide a high-heat alternative.

Biosolids from the region’s five wastewater treatment facilities are managed by Metro
Vancouver, from which 55,000 bulk tonnes of biosolids is generated annually. Metro Vancouver
currently relies on land application projects throughout BC for reuse of the product. Metro
Vancouver is forecasting this quantity to substantially increase to 150,000 tonnes per year by 2050
but does not expect it can secure sufficient new land application projects to meet the demand, due to
fluctuations in customer markets and public concern, Metro Vancouver is currently considering
future solutions to resolve this issue including constructing a drying facility at one of the regional
wastewater treatment plants,

6440871
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Biofuel Imports to Metro Vancouver

The Capital Regional District (CRD) prepared the Core Area Wastewater Program, Biosolids
Management Plan in 2009. Under the plan, CRD is planning to pipe residual solids from the
McLoughlin Point Wastewater Treatment Plant to a Residuals Treatment Facility located at the
Hartland Landfill, where they will produce dried biosolid pellets that can be used as a biofuel.
The CRD banned land application of biosolids in 2011 and recently relaxed the ban this year to
allow biosolids to be used as fertilizer at the Hartland Landfill. The region remains reliant on the
demand of independent vendors such as Lafarge Canada Incorporated (Lafarge) to meet its short-
term waste management objectives.

The CRD expects to export up to 7,000 tonnes of biofuel annually to two locations in Metro
Vancouver, Lafarge, located at 7611 No. 9 Rd. in Richmond, expects to receive 3,500 tonnes per
year beginning in 2020, and the remaining 3,500 tonnes per year is expected to be delivered
annually to the Lehigh Cement site located in Delta in subsequent years. The CRD will have the
dried, granular by-product exported by truck and ferry in bulk trailers to Lafarge where it will be
used to displace coal or natural gas in cement kiln burners for cement manufacturing. Lafarge
received a Development Variance permit from the City in 2017 to upgrade its kiln and new material
handling system. Lafarge is planning to construct a new silo and closed-loop, conveyance system
for handling the biofuel. The new infrastructure will be designed to manage fugitive dust and reduce
the potential for odours. Lafarge has committed to the necessary work and has secured provincial
funding from the CleanBC Industry Fund to support the upgrades. Staff have held preliminary
meetings with Lafarge to discuss concerns related to odours being generated through shipping into
Richmond and management on their Richmond site. Potential requirement for City-issued permits
related to the upgrades were also discussed. Staff are currently anticipating a building permit
application in the coming months,

Lafarge estimates that the CRD’s annual supply of biosolids will only satisfy approximately 1% of
their future alternative fuel offsetting needs, leaving capacity for locally refined biosolids and

biofuels should they be produced in the future.

Metro Vancouver Permitting Requirements

The overall project must consider the environmental and human health risks including managing
odours, the risk of ignition, and human exposure through authorized transporting, handling, and
storing procedures. Lafarge currently has an air discharge permit and a solid waste license issued by
Metro Vancouver under delegated authority from the Province. The existing solid waste permit
allows Lafarge to accept select alternative fuels such us biosolid pellets for onsite incineration. The
air discharge permit includes provisions for Lafarge to conduct air quality pilot studies, including
assessing odours from new fuels. Lafarge has advised staff that they intend to undertake a pilot
study to assess the biofuel during incineration. Results from the pilot study would be submitted to
Metro Vancouver for review to determine if permit amendments are required for the release of
additional contaminants into the air. No additional environmental permits are required to transport,
store, or incinerate the refined biosolid pellets.

6440871
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Literature from the Environmental Protection Agency in the United States suggests that odours from
transporting, handling, storing and incinerating the refined biofuel can be managed effectively with
technology and best management practices. The City is also aware that approximately 8,000 tonnes
of biosolids (recovered regionally) was used to amend soils for use at the Ecowaste facility in
Richmond last year, and no odour complaints were filed with Metro Vancouver during that time.
Nonetheless, the City of Richmond’s (the City) concerns related to odour and air quality have
already been communicated to Metro Vancouver and Lafarge. The City met with Lafarge staff in
February 2020 and at the City’s request, Lafarge has agreed to add carbon air filters to the silo
design to further mitigate potential odour releases to the environment. Meetings with Metro
Vancouver staff have taken place to get more information about the project and relay the City’s
concerns.

Recommended Comments for Metro Vancouver

After evaluating the project and reviewing Metro Vancouver’s Biosolids Management Plan
Framework, it is recommended that the following comments be endorsed and sent to appropriate
departments at Metro Vancouver and the CRD for consideration:

¢ That Metro Vancouver review the scope of Lafarge’s proposed incineration pilot study and
ensure that information relating to odour, metals and pathogens emissions are included as
part of the air quality testing, and that Metro Vancouver complete third party sampling
during that time to verify the results;

¢ That a copy of all of the test results, in a suitable format, be made available for the City to
review and evaluate;

¢ That Metro Vancouver be requested to investigate the benefit of developing biosolids-
specific air quality standards to ensure that regional air quality standards continue to be
achieved;

o That Lafarge be required to prepare and submit a biosolids management plan to outline the
measures and best management practices that will be in place to reduce the risk to the
community including management of odours, loading and offloading, transportation, storage
and incineration;

o That Metro Vancouver begins preparing regional best management practices including
evaluating suitable technologies in preparation for an increase in the beneficial uses of
biosolids in the region;

» Given that Lafarge has agreed to the City’s request that carbon filters be added onto the
future silo to further reduce the potential for odours, that Metro Vancouver staff ensure that
suitable carbon filters are present and operational prior to allowing future air discharges; and

e That Metro Vancouver appropriately notifies the community, in particular neighbouring
businesses, regarding Lafarge’s plan to incinerate biosolid pellets.

Financial Impact

None,

6440871
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Conclusion

The development of well-managed, biosolids projects in Metro Vancouver can reduce costs,
conserve nutrients, and can benefit local circular economy initiatives. The Lafarge project, if
managed responsibly, will provide a case study for the future use of biosolids refined locally.

The City will remain engaged in the project to ensure the City’s odour and air quality concerns
are addressed and will report back to Council accordingly.
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Chad Paulin Warren Mills

Manager, Environment Coordinator, Environmental
(604-247-4672) (604-247-4694)
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To: General Purposes Committee Date: April 22, 2020
From: Cecilia Achiam File:  12-8060-02-01/2020-
General Manager, Community Safety Vol 01

Re: Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Amendment Bylaw No. 10127

Part Ten: Karaoke Box Room Regulation

Staff Recommendation

That Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Amendment Bylaw No. 10127, which amends Part
Ten: Karaoke Box Room Regulation to prevent mosaic patterns of glass coverage, be introduced
and given first, second and third readings.

Cecilia Achiam
General Manager, Community Safety
(604-276-4122)

REPORT CONCURRENCE

ROUTED To: CONCURRENCE

Law 2}

INITIALS:
SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW

6392006
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Staff Report
Origin

The Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Part Ten: Karaoke Box Room Regulation (hereinafter
referred to as: Karaoke Box Room Regulation), requires every room used for karaoke to be
easily accessible and visible from the main entrance or restaurant area. The regulations further
specify that at least half of the wall be constructed of clear, non-glare, non-reflected, non-tinted
glass which must remain unobstructed at all times.

This report deals with an additional amendment to the regulation to prevent future applicants
from introducing mosaic glass which can have a detrimental effect on visibility into the rooms
and the intent of the Karaoke Box Room Regulation.

This report supports Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #7 A Supported Economic
Sector:

Facilitate diversified economic growth through innovative and sustainable policies,
practices and partnerships.

Analysis

Since the inception of the Karaoke Box Room Regulation, new businesses have conformed to the
regulations and have provided the required glass coverage over the middle half of every room.
This makes it easy for staff or others to see inside the rooms and gives the occupants of the
rooms a sense of safety and awareness that they can be seen. This also aids inspections of the
businesses when either RCMP presence or bylaw enforcement is required.

More recently, an application was submitted with a mosaic pattern on room visibility windows.
The mosaic includes numerous separated glass areas throughout the wall and door. The intent of
the applicant was to use the mosaic pattern to contribute to an extensive lighting system around
the mosaic patterns and the rest of the walls, While the pattern met the technical requirements of
the regulation, the pattern makes it more difficult to see into the rooms and does not meet the
intent of the Karaoke Box Room Regulation. This application was approved as the mosaic glass
met the 50% requirement as stipulated by the Karaoke Box Room Regulation.

The proposed bylaw amendment will prevent further mosaic patterns from being introduced and
provide clarity for applications on the approval process. The specific wording proposed for the
Karaoke Box Room Regulation will require glass coverage with no more than one continuous
piece, for the wall and door. This will ensure that all new karaoke rooms have sufficient
visibility for staff, patrons and inspectors.

Financial Impact

None.
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Conclusion

The amendments presented in this report will provide more specific requirements for glass
viewing areas into karaoke rooms as part of Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Part Ten:
Karaoke Box Room Regulation. Staff are recommending the approval of the amendment so that
all future business meet the intent of this regulation by providing visibility into the rooms for

staff, patrons nspectors.

cto Carli Williams
Supervisor, Business Licences Manager, Business Licence & Bylaws
(604-276-4389) Chief Licence Inspector

(604-276-4136)
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The Council of the City of Richmond enacts as follows:

I. Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, as amended, is further amended at Section 10.3 by
inserting the following new sub-section (c):

“(c)  be constructed such that the glass portion of any wall or door, required to satisfy
subsection 10.3(b), is one uninterrupted section of glass.”

2. This Bylaw is cited as “Business Regulation Bylaw No. 7538, Amendment Bylaw No.

10127”.
FIRST READING RIGHIOND
—rrRovEr
SECOND READING
THIRD READING
ot gty
by Solicitor

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS SATISFIED

ADOPTED

MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER
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Richmond Report to Committee
To: General Purposes Committee Date: April 7, 2020
From: Wayne Craig, File: HA 20-893182
Director, Development
Re: Application by David Lin for a Heritage Alteration Permit at 6471 Dyke Road
(McKinney House)

Staff Recommendation
That a Heritage Alteration Permit be issued which would:

1. Permit the following maintenance work to the heritage-designated house at 6471 Dyke Road,
on a site zoned “Single Detached Housing (ZS1) - London Landing (Steveston)’:

a) Removal and replacement of exterior wood shingle and horizontal lap siding cladding on
a like-for-like basis;

b) Repair and replacement of the rotted shiplap sheathing with new plywood sheathing as
needed;

c) Installation of new building wrap material to seal the dwelling from water ingress;
d) Installation of metal flashing to all openings and joints; and,

e) Incidental repair of existing soffits, as needed, on a like-for-like basis.

Wayne Craig
Director, Development

WC: cl
Att. 8
REPORT CONCURRENCE
ROUTED TO: CONCURRENCE CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER
Policy Planning il FZV W
/" /

/
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Staff Report
Origin
David Lin has applied to the City of Richmond for a Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP) to alter the
heritage-designated house, known as the McKinney House, at 6471 Dyke Road (Attachment 1).
An HAP issued by City Council is required for the proposed alterations consistent with the
provincial Local Government Act and the City’s Heritage Procedures Bylaw No. 8400, as the
property is protected by Heritage Designation Bylaw No. 6130. The scope of the proposed
alterations is to remove and replace the existing wood shingle and horizontal lap siding cladding
on a like-for-like basis, as well as to repair, replace, and install new components of the wall

assembly to address water ingress. Incidental repair of existing soffits may also be required, as
needed, where the proposed new cladding meets up with it.

Background

The McKinney House was constructed in 1911 and is an excellent example of Foursquare
Edwardian-era architecture with Craftsman influences. The house became a protected heritage
building in 1988 through Heritage Designation Bylaw No. 5186.

In 1993, the house was moved from its original location at 5791 Steveston Highway to its current
location at 6471 Dyke Road, and Bylaw 5186 was repealed and replaced with a new Heritage
Designation Bylaw No. 6130 to reflect the new location.

The Statement of Significance which describes the heritage value of the building is included in
Attachment 2.

In 2018, Richmond City Council issued a HAP for restoration and rehabilitation of exterior
building features and construction of an addition to the house (HA 17- 775892). The scope of
work approved included alterations in the form of repair and restoration of historic windows,
hardware, and sashes, doors, porch, and upper balcony, painting of the exterior cladding,
removal of an existing non-historic rear addition and other non-historic elements of the building,
and construction of a larger two-storey rear addition to the house. A variance to reduce the
required minimum rear yard setback from 5.0 m to 4.2 m for a minor encroachment of a portion
of the new addition was also approved as part of the HAP.

The proposed painting of the existing exterior wood cladding approved under the previously-
issued HAP could not be completed as it was discovered while undertaking the approved
construction that it was extensively rotted and further rot was discovered in the shiplap
sheathing. Photos illustrating the condition of the exterior cladding are included in Attachment
3.

Since the proposed new alterations are modifications to the scope of work approved under the
2018 HAP, this new HAP application is required.

6431249
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Surrounding Development
Existing development immediately surrounding the subject property is as follows:

e To the north is a multi-family development zoned “Town Housing (ZT43) — London Landing
(Steveston)”.

e To the south, across Dyke Road, is the South Dyke Trail, and the south arm of the Fraser
River beyond that.

e To the east is the City-owned London Farm, which is protected by Heritage Designation
Bylaws No. 3515, 3528 and 3711, on a site zoned “Agriculture (AG1)”.

e To the west is a duplex on a site zoned “Heritage Two-Unit Dwelling (ZD1) — London
Landing (Steveston)”.

Development Information

The attached Development Application Data Sheet provides a comparison of the proposed
development with the applicable requirements (Attachment 4).

Related Policies & Regulations
2041 Official Community Plan and Steveston Area Plan

The 2041 Official Community Plan (OCP) Land Use Map designation for the subject property is
“Neighbourhood Residential”. The Steveston Area Plan’s London/Princess Land Use Map
designation for the subject property is “Heritage Residential” (Attachment 5), which
accommodates residential structures of recognized historic significance and new structures
designed to a distinctive heritage appearance reflective of Steveston’s character. The proposal at
the subject site is consistent with the land use map designations in the OCP and Steveston Area
Plan.

The OCP and Steveston Area Plan also include policy to preserve, promote and celebrate
community heritage city-wide and to conserve significant heritage resources throughout the
Steveston Area. The Steveston Area Plan specifies that the Parks Canada Standards and
Guidelines for the Conservation of Historic Places in Canada (Standards and Guidelines) be
used for heritage resource management. Assessment of the impact of the proposed alterations on
the heritage value and character-defining elements of the McKinney House in the context of the
Standards and Guidelines is provided under the “Analysis” section of this report.

Heritage Procedures Bylaw No. 8400

The City’s Heritage Procedures Bylaw No. 8400 requires a Heritage Alteration Permit for
alterations to property that is included on Richmond’s Heritage Register or that is the subject of a
Heritage Designation Bylaw. As the McKinney House at 6471 Dyke Road is both on the
Heritage Register and protected under Heritage Designation Bylaw No. 6130, a Heritage
Alteration Permit is required for the proposed alterations to the house.

6431249
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Public Consultation

During the review process for the previously-issued HAP, a notification sign was installed on-
site and written correspondence from the neighbours to the north and west was received in
support of the proposal.

As this application is a modification from the previously-issued HAP at the subject site, and
involves like-for-like replacement of cladding materials, thereby extending the life of the
building while preserving the exterior character of the building, City staff did not require a new
development sign to be installed on-site.

Richmond Heritage Commission

The proposed application was presented to the Richmond Heritage Commission on
March 4, 2020 and was supported. An excerpt of the Richmond Heritage Commission meeting
minutes is included in Attachment 6.

Analysis

The architectural plans submitted by the applicant (Plans # 1 to 3.d) illustrate the proposed
modifications to the originally approved HAP drawings.

Heritage Impact Assessment

The following is a detailed list of the proposed alterations:

e Removal and replacement of exterior wood shingle and horizontal lap siding cladding on a
like-for-like basis;

e Repair and replacement of the rotted shiplap sheathing with new plywood sheathing as
needed;

¢ Installation of new building wrap material to seal the dwelling from water ingress;

e Installation of metal flashing to all openings and joints, to prevent water ingress; and

e Incidental

Following the proposed alterations, the new wood cladding will be painted in the colours
proposed in the previously-issued HAP, specifically: “Newburyport Blue” and “Monterey
White”, from Benjamin Moore’s Historic Colour collection.

National Standards and Guidelines

The guidelines that apply to heritage resources in the Steveston Planning Area are Parks
Canada’s Standards and Guidelines. The “standards” are principles that apply to all historic
places and features, whereas the “guidelines” are specific to each type of historic place and/or
materials; together they are applied to assess the overall impact of proposed alterations on the
heritage value and character-defining elements of historic places.

6431249
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The following are the relevant “standards” against which to assess the proposed alterations to the
McKinney House (Attachment 7):

Chapter Standards

3 7 a) Evaluate the existing condition of character-defining elements to
determine the appropriate intervention needed.

10b)  Where character-defining elements are too severely deteriorated to
repair, and where sufficient physical evidence exists, replace them
with new elements that match the forms, materials and detailing of
sound versions of the same elements.

The following are the relevant “guidelines” against which to assess the proposed alterations
(Attachment 8):

Chapter  Guidelines

4.3.4 14 Repairing an exterior wall assembly, including its functional and
decorative elements, by using a minimal intervention approach.
Such repairs might include the limited replacement in kind, or
replacement using an appropriate substitute material of irreparable
or missing elements, based on documentary or physical evidence.

Repairs might also include dismantling and rebuilding a masonry or
wood wall, if an evaluation of its overall condition determines that
more than limited repair or replacement in kind is required.

17 Replacing in kind an irreparable exterior wall assembly...If using
the same kind of material is not environmentally sound, or
technically or economically feasible, then a compatible substitute
material may be considered.

451 14 Repairing or replacing materials to match the original as closely as
possible, both visually and physically.

452 17 Replacing in kind extensively deteriorated or missing parts of wood
elements, based on documentary and physical evidence.

The proposal is supportable because the applicant has sufficiently demonstrated, and the City’s
Building Inspector has confirmed, that the originally approved approach to retain and paint the
existing wood cladding materials is not possible as the materials are too severely deteriorated to
repair. The proposed cladding replacement with new materials that match the existing wood
cladding maintain the dwelling’s heritage character-defining elements. The proposed alterations
to the wall assembly address water ingress and extend the building’s longevity. On this basis,
the proposal is consistent with the Standards and Guidelines.

Financial Impact

None.
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Conclusion

This proposal involves modifications to the scope of work approved under the 2018 HAP at
6471 Dyke Road, on which is located the heritage-designated McKinney House.

The proposed removal and replacement of the existing wood shingle and horizontal lap siding
cladding on a like-for-like basis, as well as repair, replacement, and installation of new
components of the wall assembly to address water ingress and ultimately extend the building’s
longevity is consistent with Parks Canada’s Standards and Guidelines.

Staff recommend that the Heritage Alteration Permit be endorsed, and issuance by City Council
be recommended.

Cynthia Lussier
Planner 2
(604-276-4108)

CL:cas

Attachment 1: Location Map/Aerial Photo of the subject site at 6471 Dyke Rd

Attachment 2: Statement of Significance for the McKinney House

Attachment 3: Photos illustrating the condition of the exterior cladding

Attachment 4: Development Application Data Sheet

Attachment 5: Steveston Area Plan’s London/Princess Land Use Map

Attachment 6: Excerpt from the March 4, 2020 Richmond Heritage Commission Meeting
Minutes

Attachment 7: Exccrpt from the National Standards

Attachment 8: Excerpt from the National Guidelines
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE: McKINNEY HOUSE, 6471 DYKE ROAD, RICHMOND

Steves, the son of Manoah Steves, the first newcomer in the area, bought land and began to
develop a townsite that would rival that developing in Vancouver. Steveston’s surrounding
agricultural area thrived, producing a wide range of crops. Dairy farming, as well as vegetable and
berry growing, were also highly successful. James and Jane McKinney, who had arrived in the area
from Ontario, were well-known landowners in early Steveston, buying large swaths of land in the
young municipality of Richmond. In addition to traditional farming pursuits on their land, the
McKinneys also grew and bred plants, leading to the establishment of the larger of two loganberry
wineries in Richmond, the Myrtina (Myrtena) Winery, during the 1930s. The McKinneys built this
home in Steveston in 1911 along Steveston Highway, where it was surrounded by newly settled
farms and newly-built farmhouses. Their home has been connected to the greater Steveston
community for more than century.

The McKinneys were among the early citizens to settle in Steveston. James McKinney arrived in
the 1890s as a tax collector and customs agent for the federal government and capitalized on the
fervor surrounding the Gold Rush and the subsequent real-estate boom. Though briefly leaving
Steveston for Vancouver, James, Jane, and their six children soon moved back, ordering The
Hamilton home from the Sears, Roebuck and Company Catalogue in 1908. McKinney made
significant upgrades to the original Sears plan with the goal of constructing an unrivalled residence
in Steveston. The McKinney House arrived from Chicago in 1911, as the pre-war economic boom
was reaching its peak. The house was a known centre of community life in the area, as the
McKinneys were active residents, assisting in the founding and building of the South Arm
Presbyterian Church, volunteering with the Liberal party and the Kiwanis club, and hosting Liberal
functions, Red Cross teas and fashion shows in the house. The McKinneys remained in the house
until 1948, when it was sold to the Scollon family. In 1992, the house was purchased by Curtis
and Eileen Eyestone, who subsequently moved the residence to its current location along Dyke
Road.

The McKinney House is an excellent example of Foursquare Edwardian-era architecture, with
Craftsman influences. The symmetrical design of Foursquare houses originated as a reaction to the
more elaborate and flamboyant Victorian styles, which often included ornate mass-produced
elements. The typical Foursquare house was constructed from quality local materials, most often
fir and cedar in British Columbia. The interior layout was oriented for the maximum amount of
interior room space, while large and plentiful windows provided the maximum amount of light
and views. The house features a hipped-roof with symmetrical hipped dormers, decorative
bevelled glass windows on the ground floor, and a full front verandah with four square tapered
porch columns. The McKinney House is a prominent local landmark, and a significant surviving
example of Richmond’s historic housing stock.

Character-Defining Elements
The elements that define the heritage character of the McKinney House are its:
- residential use for more than a century;
- residential form, scale and massing as expressed by its two and one-half storey height with
square plan and hipped-roof;
- wood-frame construction including narrow lapped siding on the ground floor and twin-
coursed shingling on the second floor;
- features of the Edwardian-era Foursquare style including: its symmetrical design, hipped-
roof structure with hipped roof dormers on each side, bellyband, bay window with hipped-
roof on the east elevation, full-width front verandah with hipped roof and balcony above,

DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES INC. JULY 2017
2
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE: McKINNEY HOUSE, 6471 DYKE ROAD, RICHMOND

square tapered verandah columns and closed balustrade, its closed soffits with dentil
coursing, closed soffit ceiling and tongue and groove wooden deck;

wooden windows including double-hung, casement, and decorative bevelled and stained
glass assemblies; and

two symmetrical exterior masonry chimneys on both the east and west elevations.

DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES INC. JULY 2017
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE: McKINNEY HOUSE, 6471 DYKE ROAD, RICHMOND

&

O RESEARCH SUMMARY

ADDRESS: 6471 Dyke Road, Richmond, British Columbia
ORIGINAL OWNERS: James and Jane McKinney
DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1911, ordered from a 1908 Sears, Roebuck and Company Catalogue

P

DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES INC. JULY 2017
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE: McKINNEY HOUSE, 6471 DYKE ROAD, RICHMOND
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2 This $3,000.00 Ten-Room Residence
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DONALD LUXTON & ASSOCIATES INC. JULY 2017
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City of

Address: 6471 Dyke Road

Richmond

ATTACHMENT 4

Development Application Data Sheet

Development Applications Department

Applicant: David Lin

Owner:

Planning Area(s):

Steveston — London/Princess Node

Ramzi Astifo and Fatin Herbert

. Proposed (as part of
Existing ’ previously issued HAP)
Site Area: 620 m? 620 m?
Land Uses: Single Detached Housing Single Detached Housing with

Secondary Suite

OCP Designation:

Neighbourhood Residential

Neighbourhood Residential

Area Plan Designation;

Heritage Residential

Heritage Residential

Zoning:

“Single Detached Heritage (ZS1) —
London Landing (Steveston)”

“Single Detached Heritage (ZS1) —
London Landing (Steveston)”

| Bylaw Requirement | Proposed | Vvariance
Floor Area Ratio: 1.0 0.91 None permitted
Max. 45% buildings 36% buildings
Lot Coverage: Max. 70% non-porous 61% non-porous None
Min. 20% live plant material | 20% live plant material
Setback — Front Yard (south): Min. 6.0 m 6.2m None
*variance
. : N approved under
Setback — Rear Yard (north): Min. 5.0 m 4.2m previously-
issued HAP
Setback ~ Side Yard (west): 1.2m 2.09m None
Setback — Side Yard (east): 1.2m 1.7m None
Height (m): 15 m 10.72m None
Minimum Lot Size: 620 m? 620 m? None
Parking Spaces: 2 2 None

6431249
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ATTACHMENT 6

Excerpt from the Minutes of
The Richmond Heritage Commission meeting

Wednesday, March 4, 2020 - 7:00 p.m.
Rm. M.1.003 '
Richmond City Hall

Heritage Alteration Permit for 6471 Dyke Road (HA 20-893182)

On behalf of Ramzi Astifo (property owner), the applicant David Lin (David Lin Design Studio)
presented the alterations proposed to be made to the “McKinney House” on the subject site as
part of this Heritage Alteration Permit (HAP) application, as illustrated on the architectural
drawings and as described in the Memo from City staff. Photos were presented and material
samples provided.

The applicant explained that the existing dwelling is currently undergoing alterations as well as
construction of a new rear addition, which was approved through a HAP issued in 2018. As part
of the previously issued HAP, the existing exterior wood shingle and horizontal lap siding
cladding was proposed to be painted. However, during construction, it was discovered that the
majority of the exterior cladding could not be repaired and painted due to extensive rot, further
rot in the shiplap sheathing, and the lack of flashing and failing building paper was allowing
water ingress. Since the previously issued HAP did not provide for alterations to the exterior
cladding and wall assembly to address the issues that were discovered during construction, the
applicant is seeking support for this new HAP application.

In response to the Commission’s questions, the following information was provided:

e Where preservation of original materials is not possible, City staff support like-for-like
replacement of cladding materials (e.g., wood for wood), rather than the use of contemporary
materials that are made to appear as the original materials.

¢ Rain Screen will be provided as per the BC Building Code

It was moved and seconded

That the Heritage Alteration Permit application for 6471 Dyke Road be supported as presented
in order to:
s Remove and replace the exterior wood shingle and horizontal lap siding cladding on a
like-for-like basis;
o Repair and replace rotted shiplap sheathing with new plywood sheathing as needed;
o Install new building wrap material to seal the dwelling from water ingress; and

o Install metal flashing to all openings and joints;
CARRIED

6431249
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eviaence, make the I0m, matenal and detaling oI tne New elements
compatible with the character of the historic place.

Conserve the heritage value and character-defining elements when
creating any new additions to an historic place or any related new
construction. Make the new work physically and visually compatible
with, subordinate to and distinguishable from the historic place.

Create any new additions or related new construction so that the
essential form and integrity of an historic place will not be impaired
if the new work is removed in the future.

Repair rather than replace character-defining elements from the
restoration period. Where character-defining elements are too severely
deteriorated to repair and where sufficient physical evidence exists,
replace them with new elements that match the forms, materials and
detailing of sound versions of the same elements.

Replace missing features from the restoration period with new
features whose forms, materials and detailing are based on sufficient
physical, documentary and/or oral evidence.

STANDARDSCAND GUIDELINES FOR THE CONSERVATION OF HISTORIC PLACES IN CANADA

L-5
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ATTACHMENT 8

GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PRESERVATION, REHABILITATION AND RESTORATION

11 neplacing in kina extens
exterior wall assemblies w.... ...e are surviving prototypes.

12 Testing proposed interventions to establish appropriate
replacement materials, quality of workmanship and
methodology. This can include reviewing samples, testing
products, methods or assemblies, or creating a mock-up.
Testing should be carried out under the same conditions
as the proposed intervention.

13 Documenting all interventions that affect the exterior walls,
and ensuring that the documentation is available to those
responsible for future interventions.

riorated or missing parts of

Replacing an entire exterior wall assembly when only
limited replacement of deteriorated and missing parts
is possible,

Using a substitute material for the replacement part
that neither conveys the same appearance as the
surviving parts of the element, nor is physically or
visually compatible.

ADDITIONAL GUIDELINES FOR REHABILITATION PROJECTS

15  Improving the drying ability of exterior wall assemblies through

suitable heating and/or ventilation measures.

STAN DARD&ND

Over-cladding a deteriorated or poorly insulated exterior
wall with a new material or assembly, without considering
the impact on heritage value or the condition of
underlying materials.

Replacing an entire exterior wall assembly when the
repair and limited replacement of deteriorated or missing
elements is feasible.

Failing to reuse intact cladding when only the internal
parts of the wall assembly need replacement.

Damaging the masonry of an exterior wall by drilling
drainage holes into the masonry units or into the joints,
with a drill bit wider than the mortar joints.

Introducing a vapour barrier in an exterior wall that
was constructed to be permeable or breathable.

GUIDELINES FOR THE CONSERVATION OF HISTORIC PLACES IN CANADA

L-6
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ADDITIONAL GUIDELINES FOR REHABILITATION PROJECTS

16

18

Accommodating tne thermal expansion and contraction of
masonry, concrete and curtain wall assemblies, by introducing
expansion or control joints, and incorporating those joints into
existing crack patterns, where feasible, to minimize impact on
character-defining elements,

Replacing missing historic features by designing and
constructing a new portion of the exterior wall assembly, based
on physical and documentary evidence, or one that is compatible
in size, scale, material, style and colour.

ADDITIONS OR ALTERATIONS TO EXTERIOR WALLS

19

20

Modifying exterior walls to accommodate an expanded
program, a new use, or applicable codes and regulations,
in a manner that respects the building's heritage value.

Designing a new addition in a manner that preserves the
character-defining exterior walls of the historic building.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND SECURITY CONSIDERATIONS

21

22

23

24

Complying with health, safety and security requirements in a
manner that conserves the heritage value of the exterior wall
assembly and minimizes impact on its character-defining elements.

Working with code specialists to determine the most
appropriate solution to health, safety and security requirements
with the least impact on the character-defining elements and
overall heritage value of the historic building.

Removing or encapsulating toxic materials, using the least-
invasive abatement methods possible, and only after thorough
testing has been conducted,

Protecting exterior walls against loss or damage by identifying and

assessing specific risks, and by implementing an appropriate fire-
protection and blast protection strategy that addresses those risks.

CNCL - 61

Filling moving cracks or expansion joints in exterior wall
assemblies with materials that inhibit or prevent thermal

expansion and contraction,

Removing an irreparable exterior wall assembly, such as
a cornice or brise-soleil, and not replacing it, or replacing
it with a new element that does not convey the same
appearance or serve the same function.

Replacing deteriorated elements and materials in curtain
wall assemblies that are no fonger available, with
physically and visually incompatible substitutes.

Creating a false historical appearance, because the
replicated feature is incompatible or based on insufficient
physical and documentary evidence,

Constructing an addition that requires the removal of
character-defining exterior walls.

Damaging or destroying elements while making
modifications to comply with health, safety or security

requirements.

Making changes to exterior walls, without first exploring
equivalent systems, methods or devices that may be

less damaging to character-defining elements and the
heritage value of the historic building.

Covering flammable character-defining walls with
fire-resistant sheathing or coatings that alter their

appearance.

GUIDELINES FOR BUILDINGS
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GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PRESERVATION, REHABILITATION AND RESTORATION

10 Updating and adapting maintenance activities, as conditions
and knowledge about the materials and maintenance products
and methods evolve.

11 Cleaning materials only when necessary, to remove heavy
soiling or graffiti. The cleaning method should be as gentle
as possible to obtain satisfactory results.

12 Carrying out cleaning tests, after it has been determined that
a specific cleaning method is appropriate.

13 Protecting adjacent materials from accidental damage during Allowing character-defining elements to be exposed to
maintenance or repair work. accidental damage by nearby work.

Using inappropriate or untested materials or
consolidants, or using untrained personnel
for repair work.

ADDITIONAL GUIDELINES FOR REHABILITATION PROJECTS

15  Replacing character-defining m....ials with compatible Using new materials and new technologies that do not
substitute materials, when the original is found to accelerate have a proven track record.
deterioration and only after thorough analysis and monitoring
confirms that the material or construction detail is problematic.
Substitute materials should be as durable as the overall assembly
to maintain its expected service life.

Replacing deteriorated character-defining elements using
new materials or technologies to improve durability,
wher © i © © rial performs a¢ y.

ADDITIONAL GUIDELINES FOR RESTORATION PROJECTS

16  Documenting materials dating from periods other than the Failing to document materials that are not from the
restoration period before their alteration or removal. If possible, restoration period before removing them,
selected samples of these materials should be stored to facilitate
future research,

GUIDELINES FOR MATERIALS
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GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR PRESERVATION, REHABILITATION AND RESTORATION

9

10

1"

12

13

14

15

16

18

220

Applying compatible coatint “ollowing proper surface prepara-
tion, such as cleaning with tri-sudium phosphate.

Ensuring that new coatings are physically and visually
compatible with the surface to which they are applied in
durability, chemical composition, colour and texture.

Applying chemical preservatives to unpainted wood elements
that are not exposed to view.

Preventing the continued deterioration of wood by isolating
it from the source of deterioration, For example, blocking
windborne sand and grit with a windbreak, or installing wire
mesh over floor joistsin ¢ rlspace to thwart rodents,

Treating active insect infestations by implementing an
extermination program specific to that insect.

Retaining all sound and repairable wood that contributes to
the heritage value of the historic place.

Stabilizing deteriorated wood by structural reinforcement,
weather protection, or correcting unsafe conditions, as required,
until repair work is undertaken,

Repairing wood by patching, piecing-in, consolidating, or
otherwise reinforcing the wood, using recognized conservation
methods.

Replacing in kind the entire panel of an extensively
deteriorated or missing modular wood product, such as plywood,
on a unit-by-unit basis.

CNCL - 63

Failing to follow the manutacturer's product and
application instructions when applying coatings,

Using chemical preservatives, such as copper naphtanate,
if these materials have not been used historically, and are
known to change the appearance of wood elements,

Neglecting to treat known conditions that threaten
wood, such as abrasion, animal gnawing, fungal
decay, or insect infestation.

Replacing wood that can be repaired, such as wood
components from old growth timber that is inherently
more durable,

Removing deteriorated wood that can be stabilized
or repaired.

Replacing an entire wood efement, when repair and
limited replacement of deteriorated or missing parts
is appropriate.

Using a substitute material for the replacement part

that neither conveys the same appearance as the wood
element, nor is physically or chemically compatible.

GUIDELINES FOR MATERIALS



g City ot Heritage Alteration Permit
| @ e Development Applications Division

thhmc‘)‘nd ' 6911 No. 3 Road, Richmond, BC V&Y 2C1

A 3 | File No.: HA 20-893182
Tothe Holder:  David.Lin |
Property Address: 6471 Dyke Road

L egal Description:” . LOT 1 SECTION 18 BLOCK 3 NORTH RANGE 6 WEST NEW WESTMINSTER
DISTRICT PLAN 11588

(5.617, Local Government Act)

1. (Reason for Permit)y ™M Designated Heritage Property (s.611)
O Property Subject to Temporary Protection (5.609)
O Property Subject to Heritage Revitalization Agreement (s.610)
O Property in Heritage Conservation Area (5.615)
O Property Subject to s.219 Heritage Covenant (Land Titles Act)

2. This Heritage Alteration Permit is issued for the following alterations, as illustrated on Plans #1 to
Plan #3.d:

¢ Removal and replacement of exterior wood shingle and horizontal lap siding cladding on a like-
for-like basis;

e Repair and replacement of the rotted shiplap sheathing with new plywood sheathing as needed,;
e Installation of new building wrap material to seal the dwelling from water ingress;

o Installation of metal flashing to all openings and joints; and
e - Incidental repair of existing soffits, as needed, on a like-for-like basis.

3. This Heritage Alteration Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the City
applicable thereto, except as specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit.

4. Ifthe alterations authorized by this Heritage Alteration Permit are not completed within 24 months
of the date of this Permit, this Permit lapses. ‘

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION NO. ISSUED BY THE COUNCIL THE DAY OF
DELIVERED THIS DAY OF , 2020.
MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, PUNISHABLE BY A FINE OF UP TO $50,000 IN THE CASE OF AN
INDIVIDUAL AND $1,000,000 IN THE CASE OF A CORPORATION, FOR THE HOLDER OF THIS PERMIT TO FAIL TO COMPLY WITH
THE REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PERMIT.
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City of

—. . . to Commi
..ichmond
To: Finance C e [ e: April 15,2020
From: Jerry Chong File:  03-0900-01/2020-Vol
Director, Finance 01
Re: Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153
S fRecommer ~ ‘ion

1. That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be introduced and given
first, second and third readings.

2. That Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be adopted.

9/ <

Jerry Chong, CPA, CA
Director, Finance
(604-276-4064)

REPORT CONCUF :=NCE

RouTED TO: CONCURRENCE | CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER
Law A,._( ——e—t—

SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW piriare. o

6404314
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April 15, 2020 -2-

Staff Report
Origin

The current COVID-19 pandemic has raised concerns for many local governments over cash
flow impact as a result of the significant decline in sales of services, possible delay and/or
delinquency in property tax collection, along with the possibility that we may have to front-end
tax remittances to other taxing agencies.

The City of Richmond (the City) continues to maintain a sound financial position with access to
cash and liquid investments to meet its financial obligations. However, with the uncertainties
regarding the duration of the pandemic measures, it is prudent to have a contingency plan in
place for the possibility that some borrowing may be required to maintain liquidity through the
pandemic crisis.

The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s approval for Revenue Anticipation Borrowing
(2020) Bylaw No. 10153.

This report supports Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #5 Sound Financial
Management:

Accountable, transparent, and responsible financial management that supports the needs
of the community into the future.

5.1 Maintain a strong and robust financial position.
Analysis

Section 177 of the Community Charter

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Community Charter:

¢ Council may, by bylaw, provide the authority to borrow money that may be necessary to
meet current lawful expenditures or to pay amounts required to meet the City’s taxing
obligations in relation to other local governments or public bodies.

¢ The maximum amount of borrowing allowed for revenue anticipation borrowing is the
sum of the unpaid taxes for the current year and the money remaining due from other
governments (e.g. payment in lieu of taxes and grants).

e Before the adoption of the annual property tax bylaw in any year, the taxes in that year
are deemed to be 75% of all property taxes imposed for all purposes in the preceding
year.

e If money is borrowed pursuant to a revenue anticipation borrowing bylaw, any money to
be collected from property taxes must be used to repay the money borrowed.

Staff propose that Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be authorized to
allow the City to have the ability to temporarily borrow up to $36,500,000 in the event that the
City requires bridge funding to meet current lawful expenditures or to pay amounts required to
meet the City’s taxing obligations in relation to other local governments or public bodies.
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City’s Credit Facility Agreement and Proposed Amendment

The City currently has an existing $9,500,000 credit facility agreement with its bank, which is
comprised of:
(1) $3,000,000 in standby letters of credit, demand promissory notes or bank overdraft;
(1) $4,500,000 in leasing lines of credit; and
(iii) $2,000,000 in commercial card credit facility.

Standby Letters of Credits/Demand Promissory Notes/Bank Overdraft

The purpose of the $3,000,000 operating line of credit is to ensure that the City has a secondary
source of credit in place to protect its bank accounts from the unlikely event of going into an
overdraft position. Staff regularly monitor the City’s cash flow position to prevent the
possibility of having to draw down on the credit facility:.

The credit facility has never been utilized by the City. If the operating line of credit remains
unused, it will be free of charge for the City to maintain.

Under the current COVID-19 situation, staff recommend that the limit for this credit facility
under the City’s Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw be increased from the existing level of
$3,000,000 to $30,000,000 in the event the City has to undertake temporary borrowing to meet
corporate cash flow requirements if the collection of property taxes falls short from budget or
gets delayed due to the pandemic.

Leasing Lines of Credit

The purpose of the $4,500,000 leasing lines of credit is to ensure that a leasing facility is
available in the event it is required. If the leasing line of credit remains unused, it will be free of
charge for the City to maintain.

This leasing line of credit is unused. Staff recommend no change to this credit facility.

Commercial Credit Card Facility

The purpose of the $2,000,000 limit in commercial credit card facility is to provide a convenient
and cost-effective method of procuring and paying for low value goods and services. The
commercial credit card facility is free of charge if payment is received within three days after the
statement date.

The current spending of the City’s commercial credit card program is well under the $2,000,000
credit limit. Staff recommend no change to this credit facility.
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Costs of the City’s Credit Facilities

The credit facilities are offered to the City by Scotiabank at no charge unless they are being
drawn upon. The following table summarizes the interest rates under the City’s existing credit
facility agreement:

Interest | Bank’s prime lending Bank’s prime lending rate | Bank’s prime lending rate

Rate rate minus 0.50% or leasing base rate plus plus 1.00%

0.60%
Grace None None 3 days after statement date
Period

The current bank’s prime lending rate at the time of this report is 2.45%.

Proposed Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153

Staff propose that Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be authorized to
allow the City to have the ability to temporarily borrow up to $36,500,000 in the event that the
City requires bridge funding to meet current lawful expenditures or to pay amounts required to
meet the City’s taxing obligations in relation to other local governments or public bodies.

The proposed Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 does not automatically
result in any borrowing upon adoption. The adoption of the Bylaw will enable the establishment
of available credit facilities in the event that bridge financing is required.

With the City’s solid financial position, the City has never activated any credit facilities in the
past. The purpose of maintaining these credit facilities is to ensure that they will be available in
the event that funds are required to meet short-term operational cash flow needs. Should any of
these credit facilities be utilized resulting in the City incurring interest charges for a consecutive
period of more than two weeks, staff will prepare a memo to inform Council of such financial
activity.

The Revenue Anticipation Borrowing Bylaw is required to be adopted annually by Council.
Credit facility arrangements are reviewed with the bank at least once a year (more frequently in
2020 due to the rapidly changing operating environment) to evaluate the City’s credit needs in
determining the optimal level of credit facility balances to maintain.

Financial Impact

None.
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Conclusion

Staff recommend that the Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153 be
approved for adoption in order for the credit facilities to be available to the City in the event that
the City has to temporarily borrow to meet current lawful expenditures or to pay amounts
required to meet the City’s taxing obligations in relation to other local governments or public
bodies.

\Y% PA, CA
Manager, Treasury and Financial Services
(604-276-4217)
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Cchmr _ylaw 10153

REVENUE ANTICIF " TION BORROWING (2020) BYL "W NO. 10153

The Council of the City of Richmond enacts as follows:

1. Council shall be and is hereby empowered and authorized to borrow upon the credit of the
City, from a financial institution, a sum not exceeding $36,500,000 at such times as may be
required.

2. The form of obligation to be given as acknowledgement of the liability shall be $30,000,000
in the form of standby letters of credit, demand promissory notes or bank overdraft,
$4,500,000 in the form of leasing lines of credit, and $2,000,000 in the form of commercial
credit card facility.

3. All unpaid taxes and the taxes of the current year (2020) when levied or so much thereof as
may be necessary shall, when collected, be used to repay the money so borrowed.

4, Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2019) Bylaw No. 9997 is hereby repealed.

5. This Bylaw is cited as “Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153”.

FIRST READING RIGHMOND
[~ APPROVED |
SECOND READING for content :y
THIRD READING
APPROVED
for qua!ity
ADOPTED by S,ollcnor
LB
MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER

6404320
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g City of

A Report to Committee
048 Richmond g

To: Finance Committee Date: April 15,2020

From: Jerry Chong File: 03-0905-01/2020-Vol
Director, Finance, CPA, CA 01

Re: 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements

Staff Recommendation

That the City of Richmond’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019 be accepted.

KL

Jerry C' g
Director, Finance, CPA, CA
(604-276-4064)

Att. 3

REPORT CONCURRENCE

CONCURRENCE OF GENERAL MANAGER

Ay ——

SENIOR STAFF REPORT REVIEW TNMALS:

6448921
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Staff Report
Origin

Sections 98 and 167 of the Community Charter require that the City of Richmond (the City)
prepare annual audited financial statements. The City’s audited consolidated financial statements
for 2019 have been prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards as
prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada.

This report supports Council’s Strategic Plan 2018-2022 Strategy #8 An Engaged and Informed
Community:

Ensure that the citizenry of Richmond is well-informed and engaged about City business
and decision-making.

8.2 Ensure citizens are well-informed with timely, accurate and easily accessible
communication using a variety of methods and tools.

Analysis

KPMG LLP (KPMG) has been appointed by City Council to independently audit the City’s
consolidated financial statements. They have expressed an opinion, that the City’s consolidated
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
the City as at December 31, 2019, and its consolidated results of operation, its consolidated
changes in net financial assets and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. The complete Audit Findings
Report is attached as Appendix 1.

The annual financial statements and the auditor’s report for the year ended December 31, 2019
are attached as Appendix 2.

The consolidated financial statements combine the accounts of the City of Richmond, Richmond
Olympic Oval and Richmond Public Library. The City’s investment in Lulu Island Energy
Company (LIEC), a wholly owned government business enterprise (GBE), is accounted for using
the modified equity method. Further information about the basis of consolidation is listed in Note
2 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the consolidated financial statements as prepared by management is provided in
the Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis (FSD&A) included in Attachment 3. The
FSD&A explains the significant differences in the financial statements between the reported year
and the previous year as well as between budgeted and actual results. This analysis is intended to
be read in conjunction with the 2019 audited consolidated financial statements.

Financial Impact

None.
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Conclusion

The City’s audited consolidated financial statements for 2019 have been prepared in accordance
with Canadian public sector accounting standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. As noted in the Auditors’
Report, it is the Auditors’ opinion that these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the City as at December 31, 2019, and
its consolidated results of operation, its consolidated changes in net financial assets and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector
accounting standards.

/// . //

L |
Cindy Gilfillan
Manager, Financial Reporting, CPA, CMA
(604-276-4077)

CG:cg
Att. 1: Audit Findings Report for the year ended December 31, 2019

2: 2019 City of Richmond Consolidated Financial Statements
3: 2019 Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis
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KPMG LLP

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER

PO Box 10426 777 Dunsmuir Street
Vancouver BC, V57Y 1K3
Canada

May _ , 2020

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are writing at your request to confirm our understanding that your audit was for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the consolidated financial statements (hereinafter referred to as “financial
statements”) of the City of Richmond (“the Entity”) as at and for the period ended December 31, 2019.

GENERAL:

We confirm that the representations we make in this letter are in accordance with the definitions as
set out in Attachment | to this letter.

We also confirm that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

RESPONSIBILITIES:

1)

We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the engagement letter dated
October 26, 2017, including for:

a)

b)

c)

d)

the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and believe that these
financial statements have been prepared and present fairly in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework.

providing you with all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation
of the financial statements (“relevant information”), such as financial records,
documentation and other matters, including:

(i) the names of all related parties and information regarding all relationships and
transactions with related parties;

(i) the complete minutes of meetings, or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared, of Council and committees of Council
that may affect the financial statements. All significant actions are included in such
summaries.

providing you with additional information that you may request from us for the purpose of
the engagement.

providing you with unrestricted access to persons within the from whom you determined
it necessary to obtain audit evidence.

CNCL - 101



e) such internal control as we determined is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. We
also acknowledge and understand that we are responsible for the design, implementation
and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

f) ensuring that all transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are
reflected in the financial statements.

g) providing you with written representations that you are required to obtain under your
professional standards and written representations that you determined are necessary.

h) ensuring that internal auditors providing direct assistance to you, if any, were instructed
to follow your instructions and that management, and others within the Entity, did not
intervene in the work the internal auditors performed for you.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING:

2) We have communicated to you all deficiencies in the design and implementation or
maintenance of internal control over financial reporting of which we are aware.

FRAUD & NON-COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS:
3) We have disclosed to you:

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud.

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects
the financial statements and involves: management, employees who have significant
roles in internal control over financial reporting, or others, where the fraud could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

c) allinformation in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the financial
statements, communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or
others.

d) all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with laws and
regulations, including all aspects of contractual agreements, whose effects should be
considered when preparing financial statements.

e) all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered
when preparing the financial statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

4)  All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the relevant
financial reporting framework requires adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements
have been adjusted or disclosed.

RELATED PARTIES:
5) We have disclosed to you the identity of the Entity’s related parties.

6) We have disclosed to you all the related party relationships and transactions/balances of
which we are aware.

7) Al related party relationships and transactions/balances have been appropriately accounted
for and disclosed in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework.

ESTIMATES:

8) Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting
estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
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GOING CONCERN:

9)  We have provided you with all information relevant to the use of the going concern assumption
in the financial statements.

10) We confirm that we are not aware of material uncertainties related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

OTHER INFORMATION:

11) We confirm that the final version of the 2019 annual report will be provided to you when
available, and prior to issuance by the Entity, to enable you to complete your audit procedures
in accordance with professional standards.

NON-SEC REGISTRANTS OR NON-REPORTING ISSUERS:

12) We confirm that the Entity is not a Canadian reporting issuer (as defined under any applicable
Canadian securities act) and is not a United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC") Issuer (as defined by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002).

13) We also confirm that the financial statements of the Entity will not be included in the group
financial statements of a Canadian reporting issuer audited by KPMG or an SEC Issuer
audited by any member of the KPMG organization.

Yours very truly,

Mr. Andrew Nazareth, General Manager, Financial & Corporate Services

Mr. Jerry Chong, Director of Finance

Ms. Cindy Gilfillan, Manager, Financial Reporting

Cc: Council
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Attachment | — Definitions
Materiality

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in the
aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the financial statements. Judgments about materiality are made in light of surrounding
circumstances, and are affected by the size or nature of a misstatement, or a combination of both.

Fraud & error

Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.

Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or
misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been
pledged without proper authorization.

An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount
or a disclosure.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Mayor and Council of the City of Richmond

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the City of Richmond (the
“City”), which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019;

e the consolidated statement of operations for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in net financial assets for the year then
ended,;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

(hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the City as at December 31, 2019, and its
consolidated results of operations, its consolidated changes in net financial assets and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public
sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
auditors’ report.

We are independent of the City in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
City’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the City or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the City's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the City's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the City to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group entity to express an opinion on the
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Chartered Professional Accountants

Vancouver, Canada
April __, 2020
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

2019 2018
Financial Assets
Cash $ 389,564 $ 121,861
Investments (note 3) 830,896 1,004,928
Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company (“LIEC”) (note 4) 31,414 29,780
Accrued interest receivable 7,781 7,443
Accounts receivable (note 5) 28,407 29,151
Taxes receivable 11,033 11,844
Development fees receivable 21,144 25,545
Debt reserve fund - deposits (note 6) 508 508
1,320,747 1,231,060
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (note 7) 107,590 95,231
Development cost charges (note 8) 197,671 158,882
Deposits and holdbacks (note 9) 117,364 113,620
Deferred revenue (note 10) 64,362 67,364
Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits (note 11) 27,891 32,842
514,878 467,939
Net financial assets 805,869 763,121
Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (note 12) 2,427,798 2,371,694
Inventory of materials and supplies 2,961 3,602
Prepaid expenses 2,714 2,673
2,433,473 2,377,969
Accumulated surplus (note 13) $ 3,239,342 $ 3,141,090

Contingent demand notes (note 6)
Commitments and contingencies (note 18)
Subsequent event (note 26)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Operations
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

2019
Budget 2019 2018
(notes 2(p)
and 24)
Revenue:
Taxation and levies (note 20) $ 229,903 $ 230,198 $ 216,908
Utility fees 105,805 111,472 102,915
Sales of services 41,977 42,747 39,111
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 14,200 16,277 15,489
Provincial and federal grants 8,362 10,687 10,355
Development cost charges (note 8) 22,764 13,802 17,432
Other capital funding sources 63,197 39,028 95,859
Other revenue:
Investment income 16,062 25,142 20,705
Gaming revenue 16,500 15,140 16,837
Licenses and permits 11,107 13,030 13,637
Other (note 21) 11,244 62,785 48,678
Equity income in government business
enterprise (“GBE”) (note 4) - 1,634 1,491
541,121 581,942 599,417
Expenses:
Community safety 112,526 106,209 98,500
Utilities: water, sewer and sanitation 95,067 98,653 89,959
Engineering, public works and project
development 74,568 80,940 68,793
Community services 68,627 67,522 61,174
General government 64,603 55,689 52,549
Planning and development 20,273 48,104 18,076
Richmond Olympic Oval 16,595 15,972 15,424
Richmond Public Library 11,079 10,601 9,981
463,338 483,690 414,456
Annual surplus 77,783 98,252 184,961
Accumulated surplus, beginning of year 3,141,090 3,141,090 2,956,129
Accumulated surplus, end of year $ 3,218,873 $ 3,239,342 $ 3,141,090

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

2019
Budget 2019 2018

(notes 2(p)

and 24)
Annual surplus for the year $ 77,783 $ 98,252 $ 184,961
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (118,551) (93,154) (92,851)
Contributed tangible capital assets (50,350) (28,867) (88,021)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 61,513 64,228 60,542

Net loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital

assets - (17,637) 324
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets - 19,326 213
(29,605) 42,148 65,168
Acquisition of inventory of materials and supplies - (2,961) (3,602)
Acquisition of prepaid expenses - (2,714) (2,673)
Consumption of inventory of materials and supplies - 3,602 3,762
Use of prepaid expenses - 2,673 2,376
Change in net financial assets (29,605) 42,748 65,031
Net financial assets, beginning of year 763,121 763,121 698,090
Net financial assets, end of year $ 733,516 $ 805,869 $ 763,121

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF RICHMOND

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(Expressed in thousands of dollars)

Year ended December 31, 2019, with comparative information for 2018

2019 2018
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Annual surplus $ 98,252 $ 184,961
Items not involving cash:
Amortization 64,228 60,542
Loss (gain) on disposal of tangible capital assets (17,637) 324
Contributions of tangible capital assets (28,867) (88,021)
Equity income in GBE (1,634) (1,491)
Change in non-cash operating working capital:
Accrued interest receivable (338) (792)
Accounts receivable 744 (2,115)
Taxes receivable 811 (2,868)
Development fees receivable 4,401 (3,169)
Inventory of materials and supplies 641 160
Prepaid expenses (42) (297)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 12,359 (3,805)
Development cost charges 38,789 28,198
Deposits and holdbacks 3,744 30,834
Deferred revenue (3,002) 1,077

Net change in cash from operating activities 172,450 203,538
Capital activities:

Cash used to acquire tangible capital assets (93,154) (92,851)

Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 19,326 213

Net change in cash from capital activities (73,828) (92,638)
Financing activities:

Repayments of debt (4,951) (4,761)
Investing activities:

Net sale (purchase) of investments 174,032 (32,145)
Net change in cash 267,703 73,994
Cash, beginning of year 121,861 47,867
Cash, end of year $ 389,564 $ 121,861

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CNCL - 113



1. Operations:

The City of Richmond (the “City”) is incorporated under the Local Government Act of British
Columbia. The City’s principal activities include the provision of local government services to
residents of the incorporated area. These include administrative, protective, transportation,
infrastructure, environmental, recreational, water, sewer, and drainage.

2. Significant accounting policies:

The consolidated financial statements of the City have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian public sector accounting standards as prescribed by the Public Sector Accounting
Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

(a) Basis of consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements reflect a combination of the City’s General Revenue,
General Capital and Loan, Waterworks and Sewerworks, and Reserve Funds consolidated
with the Richmond Public Library (the “Library”) and the Richmond Olympic Oval (the “Oval”).
The Library is consolidated as the Library Board is appointed by the City. The Oval is
consolidated as they are a wholly owned municipal corporation of the City. Interfund
transactions, fund balances and activities have been eliminated on consolidation. The City’s
investment in Lulu Island Energy Company (“LIEC”), a wholly owned government business
enterprise (“GBE"), is accounted for using the modified equity method.

(i) General Revenue Fund:

This fund is used to account for the current operations of the City as provided for in the
Annual Budget, including collection of taxes, administering operations, policing, and
servicing general debt.

(if) General Capital and Loan Fund:

This fund is used to record the City's tangible capital assets and work-in-progress,
including engineering structures such as roads and bridges, and the related debt.

(iii) Waterworks and Sewerworks Funds:

These funds have been established to cover the costs of operating these utilities, with
related capital and loan funds to record the related tangible capital assets and debt.

(iv) Reserve Funds:

Certain funds are established by bylaws for specific purposes. They are funded primarily
by budgeted contributions from the General Revenue Fund and developer contributions
plus interest earned on fund balances.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(b)

(©)

(d)

()

(f)

9

(h)

Basis of accounting:

The City follows the accrual method of accounting for revenue and expenses. Revenue is
recognized in the year in which it is earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as
they are incurred and measurable as a result of receipt of goods and services and/or the
creation of a legal obligation to pay.

Government transfers:

Restricted transfers from governments are deferred and recognized as revenue as the
related expenditures are incurred or the stipulations in the related agreement are met.
Unrestricted transfers are recognized as revenue when received or if the amount to be
received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, highly liquid money market investments and
short-term investments with maturities of less than 90 days from date of acquisition.

Investments:

Investments are recorded at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums or discounts.
Provisions for losses are recorded when they are considered to be other than temporary.

Investment in government business enterprises:

Government business enterprises are recorded using the modified equity method of
accounting. The City's investment in the GBE is recorded as the value of the GBE's
shareholder’'s equity. The investment’s income or loss is recognized by the City when it is
earned by the GBE. Inter-organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated, except
for any gains or losses on assets remaining within the City.

Accounts receivable:

Accounts receivable are net of an allowance for doubtful accounts and therefore represent
amounts expected to be collected.

Development cost charges:

Development cost charges are restricted by legislation to expenditures on capital
infrastructure. These amounts are deferred upon receipt and recognized as revenue when
the expenditures are incurred in accordance with the restrictions.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(i)

)

Post-employment benefits:

The City and its employees make contributions to the Municipal Pension Plan. As this plan is
a multi-employee plan, contributions are expensed as incurred.

Post-employment benefits also accrue to the City's employees. The liabilities related to these
benefits are actuarially determined based on service and best estimates of retirement ages
and expected future salary and wage increases. The liabilities under these benefits plans are
accrued based on projected benefits prorated as employees render services necessary to
earn the future benefits.

Non-financial assets:

Non-financial assets are not available to discharge existing liabilities and are held for use in
the provision of services. They have useful lives extending beyond the current year and are
not intended for sale in the ordinary course of operations.

(i) Tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost, which includes amounts that are directly
attributable to acquisition, construction, development, or betterment of the assets. The
cost, less the residual value, of the tangible capital assets, excluding land, are amortized
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Useful life - years
Buildings and building improvements 10-75
Infrastructure 5-100
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 3-40
Library’s collections, furniture and equipment 4-20

Amortization is charged over the asset's useful life commencing when the asset is
acquired. Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for
productive use.

(if) Contributions of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair value at the
date of receipt and also are recorded as revenue.

(iif) Natural resources, works of art, and cultural and historic assets:

Natural resources, works of art, and cultural and historic assets are not recorded as
assets in the consolidated financial statements.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

0

(k)

(M

Non-financial assets (continued):
(iv) Interest capitalization:

The City does not capitalize interest costs associated with the construction of a tangible
capital asset.

(v) Labour capitalization:

Internal labour directly attributable to the construction, development or implementation of
a tangible capital asset is capitalized.

(vi) Leased tangible capital assets:

Leases which transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks incidental to ownership
of property are accounted for as leased tangible capital assets. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases and the related payments are charged to expenses
as incurred.

(vii) Impairment of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate that they no longer
contribute to the City’s ability to provide goods and services, or when the value of future
economic benefits associated with the tangible capital assets are less than their net
book value. The net write-downs are accounted for as expenses in the consolidated
statement of operations.

(viii) Inventory of materials and supplies:

Inventory is recorded at cost, net of an allowance for obsolete stock. Cost is determined
on a weighted average basis.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognized in the period in which the transactions or events occurred that gave
rise to the revenue. All revenue is recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals
cannot be determined with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is
impractical.

The City is required to act as the agent for the collection of certain taxes and fees imposed by
other authorities. Collections for other authorities are excluded from the City's taxation
revenue.

Property taxes:

The City establishes property tax rates based on assessed market values provided by the
British Columbia Assessment Authority (BCA). Market values are determined as of July 15t of
each year. The City records taxation revenue at the time the property tax bills are issued. The
City is entitled to collect interest and penalties on overdue taxes.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued):

(m) Deferred revenue:

(n)

(0)

(P)

(a)

The City defers a portion of the revenue collected from permits, licenses and other fees and
recognizes this revenue in the year in which related inspections are performed, other related
expenses are incurred or services are provided.

Deferred revenue also represents funds received from external parties for specified
purposes. This revenue is recognized in the period in which the related expenses are
incurred.

Deposits:

Receipts restricted by the legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external
parties are deferred and reported as deposits and are refundable under certain
circumstances. When qualifying expenses are incurred, deposits are recognized as revenue
at amounts equal to the qualifying expenses.

Debt:
Debt is recorded net of related sinking fund balances.
Budget information:

Budget information, presented on a basis consistent with that used for actual results, was
included in the City's Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2019-2023) (“Consolidated
Financial Plan”) and was adopted through Bylaw No. 9979 on March 11, 2019.

Contaminated sites:

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water, or
sediment of a chemical, organic or radioactive material of live organism that exceeds an
environmental standard. Liabilities are recorded net of any expected recoveries.

A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is recognized when a site is not in productive
use and the following criteria are met:

(i)  An environmental standard exists;

(ii)  Contamination exceeds the environmental standard;

(iii)  The City is directly responsible or accepts responsibility;

(iv) Itis expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
(v)  Areasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is recognized as management’s estimate of the cost of post-remediation including
operation, maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy
for a contaminated site.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued):
(r) Use of accounting estimates:

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenditures during the reporting period.
Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the value of
contributed tangible capital assets, value of developer contributions, useful lives for
amortization, determination of provisions for accrued liabilities, performing actuarial valuation
of employee future benefits, allowance for doubtful accounts, and provision for contingencies.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the
consolidated financial statements in the period that the change in estimate is made, as well
as in the period of settlement if the amount is different.

(s) Segment disclosures:

A segment is defined as a distinguishable activity or group of activities of a government for
which it is appropriate to separately report financial information to achieve the objectives of
the standard. The City has provided definitions of segments as well as presented financial
information in segment format.

3. Investments:

2019 2018
Market Market
Cost value Cost value

Short-term notes and deposits $ 409,759 $ 409,874 $ 577,416
Government and government

guaranteed bonds 192,314 194,229 164,943 165,401
Municipal Finance Authority

$ 577,060

pooled investment fund 47,306 46,123 46,150 44,716
Other bonds 181,517 182,039 216,419 213,577
830,896 $ 832,265 $ 1,004,928 $ 1,000,754
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4.

Investment in Lulu Island Energy Company Ltd:

The City owns 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of LIEC, which was incorporated
under the British Columbia Business Corporations Act on August 19, 2013. LIEC develops,
manages and operates district energy utilities in the City of Richmond, on the City's behalf,
including but not limited to energy production, generation or exchange, transmission, distribution,
maintenance, marketing and sales to customers, customer service, profit generation, financial
management and advisory services for energy and infrastructure.

Summarized financial information relating to LIEC is as follows:

2019 2018
Cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 11,826 $ 8,596
Accounts receivable 1,303 2,242
Tangible capital assets 33,412 32,361
Total assets 46,541 43,199
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 778 414
Deferred contributions 6,183 5,375
Concession liability 8,166 7,630
Total liabilities 15,127 13,419
Shareholder’s equity $ 31,414 $ 29,780
Total revenue $ 5,295 $ 4,888
Total expenses 3,661 3,397
Net income $ 1,634 $ 1491

Included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities in the City’s consolidated statement of
financial position are payables to LIEC in the amount of $136,168 (2018 - $1,375,799).

On October 30, 2014, LIEC and the Oval Village district energy utility developer (“the
Concessionaire”) entered into a 30-year Concession Agreement, which is a public-private
partnership project (“P3”), where the Concessionaire will design, construct, finance, operate, and
maintain the infrastructure for the district energy utility at the Oval Village community. As part of
the Agreement, the infrastructure will be owned by LIEC.

On October 30, 2014, the Concessionaire and the City entered into a Limited Guarantee
Agreement. The City is the Guarantor and guarantees the performance of some of LIEC’s
obligations under the Concession Agreement to a maximum of $18.2 million (2018 - $18.2
million).
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5. Accounts receivable:

2019 2018

Water and sewer utilities $ 13,671 $ 11,999
Casino revenue 3,903 4,010
Capital grants 1,291 5,003
Other trade receivables 9,542 8,139
$ 28,407 $ 29,151

6. Debt reserve fund deposits and contingent demand notes:

The City issues its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority (the “MFA"). As a
condition of these borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the MFA in a
Debt Reserve Fund. The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture
whereby the City may be required to loan certain amounts to the MFA. These demand notes are
contingent in nature and are not reflected in the City’s accounts. The details of the cash deposits
and contingent demand notes at December 31, 2018 and 2019 are as follows:

Contingent
Cash demand
deposits notes
General Revenue Fund $ 508 $ 2,447
7. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:
2019 2018
Trade and other liabilities $ 73,403 $ 64,917
Post-employment benefits (note 15) 34,187 30,314
$ 107,590 $ 95231
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8.

10.

Development cost charges:

2019 2018
Balance, beginning of year $ 158,882 $ 130,684
Contributions 48,740 42,792
Interest 3,851 2,838
Revenue recognized (13,802) (17,432)
Balance, end of year $ 197,671 $ 158,882

Deposits and holdbacks:
Balance Deposit Balance
December 31, contributions/ Refund/ December 31,
2018 interest earned  expenditures 2019
Security deposits $ 89,557 $ 25,949 $ (21,342) $ 94,164
Developer contributions 7,313 222 - 7,535
Contract holdbacks 6,650 2,658 (3,891) 5,417
Other 10,100 6,184 (6,036) 10,248
$ 113,620 $ 35,013 $ (31,269) $ 117,364

Deferred revenue:
Balance Externally Balance
December 31, restricted Revenue December 31,
2018 inflows earned 2019
Taxes and utilities $ 20,450 $ 22,836 $ (20,450) $ 22,836
Building permits/development 15,598 9,454 (5,207) 19,845
Oval 1,876 10,625 (11,067) 1,434
Capital grants 19,558 2,728 (11,434) 10,852
Business licenses 2,523 2,251 (2,123) 2,651
Parking easement/leased land 2,430 58 47) 2,441
Other 4,929 5,920 (6,546) 4,303
$ 67,364 $ 53,872 $ (56,874) $ 64,362
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11. Debt, net of MFA sinking fund deposits:

The interest rate for the year ended December 31, 2019 on the principal amount of the MFA
debenture was 3.30% (2018 - 3.30%) per annum. Interest expense incurred for the year on the
long-term debt was $1,676,895 (2018 - $1,676,895). The maturity date of the MFA debt is April 7,
2024.

The City obtains debt instruments through the MFA pursuant to security issuing bylaws under
authority of the Community Charter to finance certain capital expenditures.

Gross amount for the debt less principal payments and actuarial adjustments to date are as

follows:
Gross Repayments
amount and actuarial Net debt Net debt
borrowed adjustments 2019 2018
General Fund $ 50,815 $ 22,924 $ 27,891 $ 32,842

Repayments on net outstanding debt over the next five years are as follows:

2020 $ 5,149
2021 5,355
2022 5,570
2023 5,792
2024 6,025

$ 27,891
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12. Tangible capital assets:

Balance Additions Balance
December 31, and December 31,
Cost 2018 transfers Disposals 2019
Land $ 984,001 $ 34,517 $ (955) $ 1,017,563
Building and building
improvements 442,181 45,398 (338) 487,241
Infrastructure 1,741,680 66,647 (7,436) 1,800,891
Vehicles, machinery and
equipment 142,793 10,255 (3,163) 149,885
Library’s collections,
furniture and equipment 9,445 1,068 (575) 9,938
Assets under construction 151,296 (35,864) - 115,432
$ 3,471,396 $ 122,021 $ (12,467) $ 3,580,950
Balance Balance
December 31, Amortization December 31,
Accumulated amortization 2018 Disposals expense 2019
Building and building
improvements $ 186,279 $ (302) $ 16,332 $ 202,309
Infrastructure 820,387 (6,919) 36,524 849,992
Vehicles, machinery and
equipment 86,826 (2,982) 10,244 94,088
Library’s collections,
furniture and equipment 6,210 (575) 1,128 6,763
$ 1,099,702 $ (10,778) $ 64,228 % 1,153,152

December 31,

December 31,

Net book value 2019 2018
Land $ 1,017,563 $ 984,001
Buildings and building improvements 284,932 255,902
Infrastructure 950,899 921,293
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 55,797 55,967
Library’s collection, furniture and equipment 3,175 3,235
Assets under construction 115,432 151,296
Balance, end of year $ 2,427,798 $ 2,371,694
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12. Tangible capital assets (continued):

@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Assets under construction:

Assets under construction having a value of $115,432,086 (2018 - $151,295,702) have not
been amortized. Amortization of these assets will commence when the asset is put into
service.

Contributed tangible capital assets:

Contributed tangible capital assets have been recognized at fair market value at the date of
contribution. The value of contributed assets received during the year is $28,866,769 (2018 -
$88,020,879) comprised of land in the amount of $14,665,393 (2018 - $69,654,386),
infrastructure in the amount of $14,191,349 (2018 - $13,666,004), buildings had no
contributed tangible capital assets in 2019 (2018 - $4,700,489), and library collections in the
amount of $10,027 (2018 - nil).

Tangible capital assets disclosed at nominal values:

Where an estimate of fair value could not be made, the tangible capital asset was recognized
at a nominal value.

Works of art and historical treasures:

The City manages and controls various works of art and non-operational historical cultural
assets including building, artifacts, paintings, and sculptures located at City sites and public
display areas. The assets are not recorded as tangible capital assets and are not amortized.

Write-down of tangible capital assets:

Tangible capital assets were written down by $1,754,513 (2018 - nil) related to estimated
repair costs associated with one of the lap pools at the Minoru Center for Active Living. The
costs to repair the deficiencies will be recovered through insurance.

13. Accumulated surplus:

General
and Richmond
Reserve  Waterworks  Sewerworks Olympic
Funds Utility Fund Utility Fund Oval Library 2019 Total 2018 Total
Investment in
tangible capital $ 2,385,747 $ - $ - $ 8,553 $ 3,176 $2,397,476  $ 2,336,489
assets
Reserves (note 14) 548,720 - - 8,856 - 557,576 540,153
Appropriated surplus 193,455 18,316 10,420 1,471 390 224,052 207,173
Investment in LIEC 31,414 - - - - 31,414 29,780
Surplus 17,717 446 6,276 604 951 25,994 24,029
Other equity 2,830 - - - - 2,830 3,466
Balance, end of year $3,179,883 $ 18,762 $ 16,696 $ 19,484 $ 4,517 $ 3,239,342  $ 3,141,090
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14. Reserves:

15.

Balance, Balance,

December 31, Change December 31,

2018 during year 2019

Affordable housing $ 10,836 $ 869 $ 11,705
Arts, culture and heritage 4,003 277) 3,726
Capital building and infrastructure 81,763 18,923 100,686
Capital reserve 176,142 (4,166) 171,976
Capstan station 32,332 (14) 32,318
Child care development 6,806 2,116 8,922
Community legacy and land replacement 8,852 (7,542) 1,310
Drainage improvement 56,132 (487) 55,645
Equipment replacement 19,600 603 20,203
Hamilton area plan community amenity 752 968 1,720
Leisure facilities 18,765 (1,089) 17,676
Local improvements 7,155 172 7,327
Neighborhood improvement 7,520 340 7,860
Oval 6,324 2,532 8,856
Public art program 4,860 (2) 4,858
Sanitary sewer 44,107 3,624 47,731
Steveston off-street parking 317 8 325
Steveston road ends 155 (5) 150
Waterfront improvement 317 (115) 202
Watermain replacement 53,415 965 54,380
$ 540,153 $ 17,423 $ 557,576

Post-employment benefits:

The City provides certain post-employment benefits, non-vested sick leave, compensated
absences, and termination benefits to its employees.

2019 2018
Accrued benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 28,423 $ 29,892
Current service cost 1,881 1,947
Interest cost 954 879
Past service cost (credit) 3,155 (397)
Benefits paid (1,953) (2,508)
Actuarial loss (gain) 2,724 (1,390)
Accrued benefit obligation, end of year $ 35,184 $ 28,423
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15.

16.

Post-employment benefits (continued):

An actuarial valuation for these benefits was performed to determine the City’'s accrued benefit
obligation as at December 31, 2019. This actuarial loss is being amortized over a period equal to
the employees' average remaining service lifetime of 10 years (2018 - 10 years).

2019 2018
Post-employment benefit liability:
Post-employment benefit liability, end of year $ 35,184 $ 28,423
Unamortized net actuarial (loss) gain (997) 1,891
Balance, end of year $ 34,187 $ 30,314

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the City's accrued benefit obligation are as follows:

2019 2018
Discount rate 2.40% 3.30%
Expected future inflation rate 2.00% 2.00%
Expected wage and salary range increases 2.50% to 3.00%  2.50% to 3.00%

Pension plan:

The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (a jointly trusteed pension
plan). The board of trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for
administering the plan, including investment of assets and administration of benefits. The plan is
a multi-employer defined benefit pension plan. Basic pension benefits are based on a formula. As
at December 31, 2018, the plan has about 205,000 active members and approximately 101,000
retired members. Active members include approximately 40,000 contributors from local
governments.

Every three years, an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the financial position of the plan
and adequacy of plan funding. The actuary determines an appropriate combined employer and
member contribution rate to fund the plan. The actuary’'s calculated contribution rate is based on
the entry-age normal cost method, which produces the long-term rate of member and employer
contributions sufficient to provide benefits for average future entrants to the plan. This rate may
be adjusted for the amortization of any actuarial funding surplus and will be adjusted for the
amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability.
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16.

17.

Pension plan (continued):

The most recent valuation for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2018, indicated a
$2,866 million funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis.

The City paid $13,251,994 (2018 - $12,759,865) for employer contributions while employees
contributed $11,120,458 (2018 - $10,615,884) to the plan in fiscal 2019.

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2021, with results available in 2022.

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer
contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is
because the plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate,
resulting in no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to
individual employers participating in the plan.

Contingent assets and contractual rights:
(a) Contingent assets:

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving
uncertainty. That uncertainty will ultimately be resolved when one or more future events not
wholly within the City’s control occurs or fails to occur.

The City has legal claims, service agreements, and land dedications that may qualify as
contingent assets. Amounts cannot be estimated as of December 31, 2019. Contingent
assets are not recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

In 2019, the City had requested payment from the Office of the Minister of Public Services
and Procurement Canada, for outstanding payments-in-lieu of taxes in the amount of
$11,139,593. As of December 31, 2019, collectability of the requested amount is not
determinable and has not been accrued for in the City’s consolidated financial statements.

(b) Contractual rights:

The City has entered into contracts or agreements in the normal course of operations that it
expects will result in revenue and assets in future fiscal years. The City’s contractual rights
are comprised of leases, licenses, grants and various other agreements, including the
provision of police services with the Vancouver Airport Authority. The following table
summarizes the expected revenue from the City’s contractual rights:

2020 $ 15,157
2021 11,574
2022 4,887
2023 3,437
2024 2,011
Thereafter 9,768
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17. Contingent assets and contractual rights (continued):

(b)

Contractual rights (continued):

The City is entitled to receive revenue from certain other agreements. The revenue from
these agreements cannot be quantified and has not been included in the amounts noted
above.

18. Commitments and contingencies:

(@)

(b)

()

(d)

()

Joint and several liabilities:

The City has a contingent liability with respect to debentures of the Greater Vancouver Water
District, Greater Vancouver Sewerage and Drainage District and Greater Vancouver Regional
District, to the extent provided for in their respective Enabling Acts, Acts of Incorporation and
Amending Acts. Management does not consider payment under this contingency to be likely
and therefore no amounts have been accrued.

Lease payments:

The City is committed to operating lease payments for premises and equipment in the
following approximate amounts:

2020 $ 3,368
2021 3,311
2022 2,583
2023 2,569
2024 2,369
Thereafter 7,748
Litigation:

As at December 31, 2019, there were a number of claims or risk exposures in various stages
of resolution. The City has made no specific provision for those where the outcome is
presently not determinable.

Municipal Insurance Association of British Columbia (“Association”):

The City is a participant in the Association. Should the Association pay out claims in excess
of premiums received, it is possible that the City, along with other participants, would be
required to contribute towards the deficit. Management does not consider external payment
under this contingency to be likely and therefore, no amounts have been accrued.

Contractual obligation:

The City has entered into various contracts for services and construction with periods ranging
beyond one year. These commitments are in accordance with budgets passed by Council.
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18. Commitments and contingencies (continued):

() E-Comm Emergency Communications for Southwest British Columbia Incorporated
(“E- Comm”):

The City is a shareholder of the E-Comm whose services provided include: regional 9-1-1 call
centre for the Greater Vancouver Regional District; Wide Area Radio network; dispatch
operations; and records management. The City has 2 Class A shares and 1 Class B share (of
a total of 34 Class A and 20 Class B shares issued and outstanding as at December 31,
2019). As a Class A shareholder, the City shares in both funding the future operations and
capital obligations of E-Comm (in accordance with a cost sharing formula), including any
lease obligations committed to by E-Comm up to the shareholder’s withdrawal date.

() Community associations:

The City has agreements with the various community associations which operate the
community centers throughout the City. The City generally provides the buildings and
grounds, pays the operating costs of the facilities, and provides certain staff and other
services such as information technology. Typically the community associations are
responsible for providing programming and services to the community. The community
associations retain all revenue which they receive.

19. Trust funds:

Certain assets have been conveyed or assigned to the City to be administered as directed by
agreement or statute. The City holds the assets for the benefit of and stands in fiduciary
relationship to the beneficiary. The following trust fund is excluded from the City’s consolidated
financial statements.

2019 2018

Richmond Community Associations $ 1,877 $ 1,837
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20.

21.

Taxation and levies:

2019 2018

Taxes collected:
Property taxes $ 463,679 $ 433,319
Payment-in-lieu of taxes and grants 27,597 26,369
Local improvement levies 88 265
491,364 459,953

Less transfers to other authorities:

Province of British Columbia — School taxes (190,650) (177,521)
TransLink (40,800) (37,813)
Metro Vancouver (7,224) (6,178)
BC Assessment Authority (6,185) (6,016)
Other (30) (28)
(244,889) (227,556)
Less payment-in-lieu of taxes retained by the City (16,277) (15,489)
$ 230,198 $ 216,908

Other revenue:
2019 2018
Developer contributions 27,394 33,672
Tangible capital assets gain on sale of land 18,205 -
Penalties and fines 4,303 3,784
Parking program 2,091 2,054
Other 10,792 9,168
62,785 48,678
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22.

23.

Government transfers:

Government transfers are received for operating and capital activities. The operating transfers
consist of gaming revenue and provincial and federal grants. Capital transfers are included in
other capital funding sources revenue. The source of the government transfers are as follows:

2019 2018
Operating
Province of British Columbia $ 20,602 $ 21,899
TransLink 3,666 3,593
Government of Canada 1,560 1,700
Capital
Province of British Columbia 3,968 5,685
TransLink 1,010 1,666
Government of Canada 4,056 50

$ 34,862 $ 34,593

Segmented reporting:

The City provides a wide variety of services to its residents. For segment disclosure, these
services are grouped and reported under service areas/departments that are responsible for
providing such services. They are as follows:

(8 Community Safety brings together the City's public safety providers such as Police (RCMP),
Fire-Rescue, Emergency Programs, and Community Bylaws. It is responsible for ensuring
safe communities by providing protection services with a focus on law enforcement, crime
prevention, emergency response, and protection of life and properties.

(b) Utilities provide such services as planning, designing, constructing, operating, and
maintaining the City's infrastructure of water and sewer networks and sanitation and
recycling.

(c) Engineering, Public Works and Project Development comprises of General Public Works,
Roads and Construction, Storm Drainage, Fleet Operations, Engineering, Project
Development, and Facility Management. The services provided are construction and
maintenance of the City's infrastructure and all City owned buildings, maintenance of the
City's road networks, managing and operating a mixed fleet of vehicles, heavy equipment
and an assortment of specialized work units for the City operations, development of current
and long-range engineering planning and construction of major projects.
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23. Segmented reporting (continued):

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

(h)

Community Services comprises of Parks, Recreation, Arts, and Culture and Heritage
Services. These departments ensure recreation opportunities in Richmond by maintaining a
variety of facilities such as arenas, community centres, pools, etc. It designs, constructs and
maintains parks and sports fields to ensure there is adequate open green space and sports
fields available for Richmond residents. It also addresses the economic, arts, culture, and
community issues that the City encounters.

General Government comprises of Mayor and Council, Corporate Administration, and
Finance and Corporate Services. It is responsible for adopting bylaws, effectively
administering city operations, levying taxes, legal services, providing sound management of
human resources, information technology, City finance, and ensuring high quality services to
Richmond residents.

Planning and Development is responsible for land use plans, developing bylaws and
policies for sustainable development in the City including the City’s transportation systems,
and community social development.

Richmond Olympic Oval Corporation is formed as a wholly owned subsidiary of the City.
The City uses the Richmond Olympic Oval facility as a venue for a wide range of sports,
business and community activities.

Richmond Public Library provides public access to information by maintaining 5 branches
throughout the City.
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23. Segmented reporting (continued):

Engineering,
public works
Community and project  Community General  Planning and Total City
safety Utilities  development services government  development subtotal
Revenue:
Taxation and levies $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 230,198 $ - $ 230,198
User fees - 99,426 12,046 - - - 111,472
Sales of services 6,732 4,235 2,476 9,917 7,786 2,284 33,430
Payments-in-lieu of taxes - - - - 16,277 - 16,277
Provincial and federal grants 99 - 3,707 37 3,545 40 7,428
Development cost charges - 668 2,412 2,988 2,203 5,531 13,802
Other capital funding sources - 3,432 11,448 3.783 14,666 5,689 39,018
Other revenue:
Investment income - 542 - - 24,580 - 25,122
Gaming revenue 706 - - - 14,434 - 15,140
Licenses and permits 4,588 42 1,009 - 15 7,376 13,030
Other 2,652 3,608 1,202 1,173 51,453 153 60,241
Equity income - - - - 1,634 - 1,634
14,777 111,953 34,300 17,898 366,791 21,073 566,792
Expenses:
Wages and salaries 45,582 13,962 25,595 33,372 29,366 12,425 160,302
Public works maintenance 22 7,465 7,060 1,894 (1,481) 337 15,297
Contract services 55,027 8,944 4,978 4,446 3,673 1,585 78,653
Supplies and materials 2,719 33,219 1,397 13,056 10,748 1,035 62,174
Interest and finance 78 22,918 - 72 3,017 - 26,085
Transfer from (to) capital for
tangible capital assets 27) 3,140 12,829 5,695 275 30,621 52,533
Amortization of tangible
capital assets 2,765 8,778 28,888 8,930 10,088 2,023 61,472
Loss (gain) on disposal of
tangible capital assets 43 227 193 57 3 78 601
106,209 98,653 80,940 67,522 55,689 48,104 457,117
Annual surplus (deficit) $ (91,432) $ 13,300 $ (46,640) $ (49,624) $ 311,102 $ (27,031) $ 109,675
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23. Segmented reporting (continued):

Richmond Richmond

Total City Olympic Public 2019 2018
subtotal Oval Library  Consolidated Consolidated
Revenue:
Taxation and levies $ 230,198 $ - $ - $ 230,198 $ 216,908
User fees 111,472 - - 111,472 102,915
Sales of services 33,430 9,228 89 42,747 39,111
Payments-in-lieu of taxes 16,277 - - 16,277 15,489
Provincial and federal grants 7,428 2,883 376 10,687 10,355
Development cost charges 13,802 - - 13,802 17,432
Other capital funding sources 39,018 - 10 39,028 95,859
Other revenue:
Investment income 25,122 - 20 25,142 20,705
Gaming revenue 15,140 - - 15,140 16,837
Licenses and permits 13,030 - - 13,030 13,637
Other 60,241 2,289 255 62,785 48,678
Equity income 1,634 - - 1,634 1,491
566,792 14,400 750 581,942 599,417
Expenses:
Wages and salaries 160,302 9,298 7,763 177,363 162,331
Public works maintenance 15,297 - 2 15,299 13,405
Contract services 78,653 - 445 79,098 73,479
Supplies and materials 62,174 5,042 1,585 68,801 67,919
Interest and finance 26,085 - 4 26,089 23,149
Transfer from (to) capital for
tangible capital assets 52,533 - (289) 52,244 13,307
Amortization of tangible capital
assets 61,472 1,628 1,128 64,228 60,542
Loss (gain) on disposal of
tangible capital assets 601 4 (37) 568 324
457,117 15,972 10,601 483,690 414,456
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 109,675 $ (1,572) $ (9,851) $ 98,252 $ 184,961
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24.

25.

26.

Budget data:

The budget data presented in these consolidated financial statements is based on the
Consolidated Financial Plan adopted by Council on March 11, 2019. The table below reconciles
the adopted Consolidated Financial Plan to the budget amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements.

Financial Financial
plan statement
Bylaw No. 9979 budget
Consolidated financial plan:
Revenue $ 541,121 $ 541,121
Expenses 463,338 463,338
Annual surplus 77,783 77,783
Less:
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (399,171) -
Contributed tangible capital assets (50,350) -
Transfer to reserves (69,403) -
Debt principal (4,951) -
Add:
Capital funding 417,161 -
Transfer from surplus 28,931 -
Annual surplus $ - $ 77,783

Comparative information:

Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform to the consolidated financial
statement presentation adopted for the current year.

Subsequent event:

Subsequent to December 31, 2019, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the
World Health Organization. This situation presents uncertainty over the City's future cash flows,
and may have a significant impact on the City’s future operations. In response to the outbreak,
the City has temporarily closed some of its facilities. Potential impacts on the City’s business
could include future decreases in revenue and delays in completing capital project work. As the
situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact on the economy are
not known, an estimate of the financial effect on the City is not practicable at this time.
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| ,’ City of
# Richmond Bylaw 10183

Revised Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2020-2024) Bylaw No.
10183

The Council of the City of Richmond enacts as follows:

1. Schedule “A”, Schedule “B” and Schedule “C” which are attached and form part of this
bylaw, are adopted as the Revised Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2020-2024).

2. Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2020-2024) Bylaw No. 10119 is hereby repealed.

3. This Bylaw is cited as “Revised Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2020-2024) Bylaw

No. 10183”.
APR 2 0 2020
FIRST READING RICHMOND
APPROVED
SECOND READING APR 20 2020 rcomanty
THIRD READING APR 20 2020 L —
APPROVED
forleqa!ity
ADOPTED by Solicitor
MAYOR CORPORATE OFFICER

6449951
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Bylaw 10183 -5-

SCHEDULE C:
CITY OF RICHMOND
CONSOLIDATED 5 YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN (2020-2024)
STATEMENT OF POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

Revenue Proportions By Funding Source

Property taxes are the largest portion of revenue for any municipality. Taxes provide a stable and
consistent source of revenue for many services that are difficult or undesirable to fund on a user-
pay basis. These include services such as community safety, general government, libraries a
park maintenance.

Objective:
e Maintain revenue proportion from property taxes at current level or lower

Policies:
e Tax increases will be at CPI + 1% for transfers to reserves
e Annually, review and increase user fee levels by consumer price index (CPI).
e Any increase in alternative revenues and economic development beyond all financial
strategy targets can be utilized for increased levels of service or to reduce the tax rate.

Table 1 shows the proportion of total revenue proposed to be raised from each funding source in
2020.

Tahla 1-

Property Taxes 49. /%
User Fees 23.9%
Sales of Services 9.1%
Investment Income 3.8%
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 3.1%
Gaming Revenue 3.0%
Licenses and Permits 2.4%
Provincial and Federal Grants 2.1%
Other 2.9%
Total Operating and Utility Funding Sources 100.0%

6449951
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Bylaw 10183 -6-

SCHEDULE C (CONT’D):
CITY OF RICHMOND
CONSOLIDATED 5 YEAR FINANCIAL PLAN (2020-2024)
STATEMENT OF POLICIES AND OBJECTIVES

Distribution of Property Taxes

Table 2 provides the estimated 2020 distribution of property tax revenue among the property
classes.

Objective:
¢ Maintain the City’s business to residential tax ratio in the middle in comparison to other
municipalities. This will ensure that the City will remain competitive with other
municipalities in attracting and retaining businesses.

Policies:
e Regularly review and compare the City’s tax ratio between residential property owners
and business property owners relative to other municipalities in Metro Vancouver.

Table 2: (Based on the 2020 Revised Roll figures)

Residential (1) 56.53%
Business (6) 34.64%
Light Industry (5) 6.80%
Others (2,3,48 & 9) 2.03%
Total 100.00%

Permissive Tax Exemptions

Objective:

e Council passes the annual permissive exemption bylaw to exempt certain properties from
property tax in accordance with guidelines set out by Council Policy and the Community
Charter. There is no legal obligation to grant exemptions.

e Permissive exemptions are evaluated with consideration to minimizing the tax burden to
be shifted to the general taxpayer.

Policy:
e Exemptions are reviewed on an annual basis and are granted to those organizations
meeting the requirements as set out under Council Policy 3561 and Sections 220 and 224
of the Community Charter.

6449951

CNCL - 176



	Agenda Cover Sheet - Council - May 11, 2020
	#1 - Minutes - Council - Apr. 27, 2020
	#6 (1) - Minutes - GP - May 4, 2020
	# 6 (2) - Minutes - Finance - May 4, 2020
	#7 - Capital Regional District Biofuel Incineration 
	#8 - Business Regulation Bylaw 7538, Amendment Bylaw 10127
	Bylaw 10127

	#9 - Application - 6471 Dyke Rd.
	Att. 1 - Location Map
	Att. 2 - Statement of Significance
	Att. 3 - Condition of the Exterior Cladding
	Att. 4 - Dev. Application Data Sheet
	Att. 5 - Steveston Area Plan - Land Use Map
	Att. 6 - Minutes Excerpt - RHC - Mar. 4, 2020
	Att. 7 - Excerpt from National Standards
	Att. 8 - Excerpt from National Guidelines
	HA 20-893182

	#10 - Revenue Anticipation Borrowing (2020) Bylaw No. 10153
	Bylaw 10153

	#11 - 2019 Consolidated Financial Statements
	Att. 1 - Audit Findings Report for the year ended Dec. 31, 2019
	Att. 2 - 2019 City of Richmond Consolidated Financial Statements
	Att. 3 - 2019 Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis

	Bylaw 10183



